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HUAN HSIN has transformed and diversified into 
higher value-added and higher technology business 
such as notebook casings, printer related products 
& finished product assembly to capitalize on the 
long term dynamics of the IT Industry.

Established in 1980, SGX Mainboard listed Huan Hsin Group is an integrated contract 
manufacturer of telecommunications and electronic products. With 8 plants in the 
People’s Republic of China and 1 in Malaysia, the Group’s operations include tooling, 
plastic injection, metal stamping, spray painting, PCB assembly, wire and cable and 
finished product assembly.
 
Riding on the global outsourcing trend, Huan Hsin has grown to become one of the 
leading notebook casing manufacturers in the world. Huan Hsin also manufactures 
products such as notebook peripherals, printer casings, laser printer cartridges, LCD TV 
casings, LCD monitor casings, fax machine components, fixed-line handsets, telephone 
cords and power cords.



Corporate Mission

We aim to achieve sustainable growth for the Group and to enhance 
shareholder value by providing quality products and services. We will 
constantly upgrade and adapt our business to anticipate and meet evolving 
customer needs in an increasingly challenging business environment.

As we continue to extend our reach into global markets, we intend 
to sharpen our competitive edge through a multi-pronged strategy 
that encompasses the following:
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Our growing business, ISO9001 and ISO14001 
certifications are clear testimonies to our focus on 

quality products and customer satisfaction.

•  Vertical integration of our manufacturing operations to deliver 

 finished products at the most competitive prices

•  Maintaining high quality standards and minimising costs at all times

•  Strengthening relationships with our customers, staffs and business associates

•  Further development of synergistic investments
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I am pleased to report that despite the fact that FY2005 
was a challenging year, our Group revenue managed to 
cross the half billion dollar mark, which is a milestone 
achievement for Huan Hsin. Amidst growing competition 
and escalating raw material costs, the Group also 
managed to deliver a healthy bottom line and a strong 
balance sheet. 

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Our Group revenue increased 40% to S$660.3 million, 
due mainly to increased orders for products such as 
notebook casings, notebook peripherals and fax machine 
components. New products such as printer casings and 
laser printer cartridges from the newly set up Shandong 
(Weihai) and Suzhou (Wujiang) plants, which commenced 
production in 1Q2005 and 2Q2005 respectively, also 
contributed to the increased revenue. 

Despite higher revenue, operating profit declined to 
S$30.7 million from S$55.7 million while net profit 
attributable to shareholders eased 29% to S$22.8 million 
from S$32.2 million, reflecting the impact of higher raw 
material costs due to high oil prices, the start up costs of 
the Group’s new plants in Shandong (Weihai) and higher 
staff costs. Costs of raw materials rose by 75% partly 
due to turnkey orders for notebook peripherals, where 
procurement of components is borne by the Group, 
and also due partly to higher prices of plastic resin and 
copper wire. In the past year, while the Group expanded 

its capacity to keep pace with the rise in customer 
orders, it could not raise its selling prices due to keen 
competition. 

Earnings per share for the Group declined to 5.89 cents 
in FY2005 from 9.62 cents in FY2004 while net asset 
value per share increased to 75.75 cents from 66.27 
cents.  

DIVIDENDS
The directors have recommended a tax-exempt final 
dividend of 0.6 cents per ordinary share subject to 
shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming Annual 
General Meeting. Together with the interim tax-exempt 
dividend of 1 cents per ordinary share, paid on September 
8, 2005, the total dividend payout for FY2005 will be 1.6 
cents per ordinary share.

CORPORATE RANKING 
The Group was ranked 42nd out of Singapore top 
100 companies in the Singapore International 100 as 
well as ranked number 8th from the markets of China, 
which organized by International Enterprise Singapore 
with DP Information as the ranking organization and 
in collaboration with The Business Times, Singapore 
Business Federation and Singapore Management 
University to recognise by the highest overseas revenue 
and largest revenue contributions from the region’s 
market. The ranking was published in the TODAY on 
January 25, 2006.

“The Group achieved a record 
revenue, which crossed the half 

billion dollar mark in FY2005 
despite facing competitive 

and cost pressures.”



President’s Message

Hsu Hung Chun
PRESIDENT
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Separately, the Group was ranked number 323 out of 
500 companies on the Deloitte Technology Fast 500 Asia 
Pacific 2005, a ranking of the fast growing technology 
companies in Asia Pacific. Ranking were based on average 
revenue growth rates over the past three years.
   
The Group was also recognized by DP Information 
Group, a ranking body in Singapore, as one of the 
fastest growing companies in Singapore. Out of 1000 
companies, the Group was ranked number 315 by sales, 
258 by net profit and 71 by public listed companies. 

OUTLOOK
Moving forward, we will continue to diversify our product 
portfolio to avoid over dependence on a single product, to 
increase our market share and to attain a more balanced 
revenue mix. To achieve this, we intend to expand 
our customer base by targeting more multinational 
corporations (MNCs) with better margins and which have 
a wider portfolio of products to outsource. To meet the 
demands of MNCs, the Group plans to further integrate 
the facilities by setting up precision injection plants and 
tooling plants to fabricate moulds to offer a broader 
range of manufacturing services to these customers. 
We will also continue to seek more orders from new 
customers.  

On the cost side of the equation, the Group will 
continue to improve our cost structure by enhancing our 
production efficiency and investing in Shandong (Weihai) 
where staff and operating costs are lower than those of 
Shanghai. 

While notebook casings will remain the main revenue 
contributor for the Group in FY2006, the Group expects 
stronger contributions from printer related products such 
as laser cartridges as these are consumable items that 
can generate recurring revenue. We also believe that 
there is an upside potential in the average selling price 
for printer related products if the Group succeeds in 
clinching orders to handle the full assembly of the printer 
products next year.   

Barring unforeseen circumstances and any significant 
movements in raw material prices and pricing pressures, 

the Board is optimistic about the Group’s performance 
in FY2006.

RECENT DEVELOPMENT
Restructuring Of Subsidiary
In February 2006, Tech Chain Ltd (“TC”) proposed to 
increased the registered capital of Zhan Yun (Shanghai) 
Electronics Co., Ltd (“ZY”) from US$20 million to US$30 
million under the first stage of the restructuring. It was 
proposed that the Group would invest US$2.55 million 
in the capital of TC for its portion of investment in ZY. 
This additional investment will result in the dilution of the 
Group’s direct interest in ZY from 51% to 34% and an 
indirect interest of 8.5% in ZY through TC. 

Currently, TC is one of the shareholders of ZY with 49% 
shareholding in which ZY is a 51% subsidiary of the 
Group. 

Disposal of Associate Company
The Group entered into a Sale & Purchase Agreement 
to dispose of its entire 40% shareholding in Sheng Ding 
Pte Ltd for a total cash consideration of US$800,000 in 
March 2006.  

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
I would like to record my appreciation to our fellow Board 
members for their valuable contributions and counsel. 
On behalf of our Board of Directors, I would like to say 
a big thank you to our customers for their unwavering 
support and patronage. Kudos is also due to our staff for 
their commitment and hard work in helping the Group 
meet its targets. 

Last but not least, thanks are due to you, our shareholders, 
for keeping faith with us and your vote of support in this 
company.
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1. HSU HUNG CHUN | Chairman
 Mr. Hsu Hung Chun, aged 51, has been the Director and Chairman of the Board since December 26,1995. He is an executive 

director and serves as a member of the Nominating Committee. 
 
 Mr. Hsu Hung Chun is also the President and founder of the Group. He is responsible for business development and all the 

marketing activities of the Group. He is also in charge of the Group’s investment policy, banking and financial issues. He 
graduated in 1973 from the Tai Pei High School, Taiwan and previously worked as a sales manager in a manufacturing company 
and a trading company. He is a member of the Singapore Institute of Directors.

 He is a substantial shareholder of the Company and has interest in certain transactions with the Group, which are disclosed in 
page 79 of the Annual Report. He attended four (4) of the five (5) Board Meetings held in the financial year.  He is the brother 
of Mr. Hsu Cheng Chien and was last re-elected on April 28,2004.

2. HSU CHENG CHIEN | Managing Director
 Mr. Hsu Cheng Chien, aged 48, was appointed to the Board on December 26,1995 and subsequently was appointed as Group 

Managing Director on May 28, 1997. He is an executive director and serves as a member of the Remuneration Committee. 

 As the Managing Director of the Group, he is in charge of the overall operation and production of the Group, setting and 
implementing long-term business objectives and strategic planning of the Group. He graduated in 1974 from Yu Da Business 
School, Taiwan. Prior to joining the Group in 1980, he was head of the material control and purchasing department in a 
manufacturing company. He is also a member of the Singapore Institute of Directors.

 He is a substantial shareholder of the Company and has interest in certain transactions with the Group, which are disclosed in 
page 79 of the Annual Report.  He attended four (4) of the five (5) Board Meetings held in the financial year.  He is the brother 
of Mr. Hsu Hung Chun.

3. LIM HOCK BENG | Independent Non-executive Director
 Mr. Lim Hock Beng, aged 66, was appointed to the Board on May 16, 1997 and is an independent non-executive director. He 

serves as the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Nominating and Remuneration Committees. 

 He was the founder and the managing director of Lim Associates Pte Ltd, which provided corporate secretarial services to private 
and public listed companies, for 27 years until his retirement in year 1995. Currently, he is the managing director of a private 
investment holding company with its principal interests in investing in quoted securities and properties.  He holds a Diploma in 
Management Accounting & Finance and is a member of the Singapore Institute of Directors. 

 Current directorships in public companies listed on SGX-ST include GP Industries Ltd, Colex Holdings Ltd, King Wan Corporation 
Ltd, Vicplas International Ltd, Action Asia Limited and LMA International N.V.. 

 He does not hold any share but hold share options for 120,000 shares in the Company.  He attended all the five (5) Board 
Meetings held in the financial year.  He has no family relationship with any Director and/or substantial shareholder of the 
Company, or any personal interest in any business involving the Company.  He was last re-elected on April 28, 2004.

4. LAU PING SUM, PEARCE | Independent Non-executive Director
 Mr. Lau Ping Sum, Pearce, aged 65, was appointed to the Board on May 28, 1997. He is an independent non-executive director 

and serves as the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit and Nominating Committees. 

 Currently he is an Executive Director of PAP HQ and PAP Community Foundation HQ . Prior to joining the Board, he had held 
management positions as head of IT in two financial institutions and a statutory board. He was a Member of Parliament between 
1980 and 1996. 

 Current directorships in public companies listed on SGX-ST include Nera Telecommunications Ltd, Cortina Holdings Ltd and 
Sunpower Group Ltd.
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 He does not hold any share but hold share options for 120,000 shares in the Company.  He attended all the five (5) Board 
Meetings held in the financial year.  He has no family relationship with any Director and/or substantial shareholder of the 
Company, or any personal interest in any business involving the Company.  He was last re-elected on May 28, 2003.

5. CHEW HENG CHING | Independent Non-executive Director
 Mr. Chew Heng Ching, aged 54, was appointed to the Board on August 25, 2004. He is an independent non-executive director 

and serves as the Chairman of the Nominating Committee and a member of the Audit and Remuneration Committees. 

 He is the Founding President of the Singapore Institute of Directors and currently Chairman of its Governing Council.  He has 
extensive management experience in both the public and private sectors, having worked in the Ministries of Finance and Trade 
& Industry, and in banking, manufacturing, commerce, real estate, education, construction and media industries in the last 28 
years. He was a member of the Corporate Governance Committee that formulated the Code of Corporate Governance for 
companies in Singapore and a member of the Council on Corporate Disclosure and Governance.  He is also a Board member 
and Chairman of the Singapore International Chamber of Commerce.  He has been  a Member of Parliament since 1984 and is 
currently Deputy Speaker of the Singapore Parliament.  

 A Colombo Plan scholar, he is a graduate in Industrial Engineering (1st Class Honours) and Economics from the University of 
Newcastle, Australia.  He also received an Honorary Doctorate in Engineering from the same University.  He is a fellow of the 
Singapore Institute of Directors and CPA Australia.

 Current directorships in public companies listed on SGX-ST include Alantac Technology Ltd, Bonvests Holdings Limited, Chosen 
Holdings Limited, Dragon Land Limited, Lee Kim Tah Holdings Limited, LMA International NV, Pharmesis International Ltd and 
Spindex Industries Limited.

 
 He does not hold any share or share options in the Company.  He attended all the five (5) Board Meetings held in the financial 

year.  He has no family relationship with any Director and/or substantial shareholder of the Company, or any personal interest in 
any business involving the Company. He was last re-elected on April 18,2005.

 
6. HSU MING HUNG | Executive Director
 Mr. Hsu Ming Hung, aged 45, was appointed to the Board on May 28, 1997 and is an  executive director. 

 He is the Deputy General Manager of Huan Hsin Co (M) Sdn Bhd. He is responsible for the management of the Malaysian 
operations and assists Managing Director in implementing, reviewing and verifying the overall corporate strategy and policies of 
the Group. He graduated from Nan Ya Industrial Training School, Taiwan in 1983 and has been with the Group for more than 
15 years.

 He holds 750,000 shares and share options for 180,000 shares in the Company. He attended all the five (5)  Board Meetings 
held in the financial year.  He is the nephew  of Messrs Hsu Hung Chun and Hsu Cheng Chien. He was last re-elected on April 
18, 2005.

7. CHANG SHIH HSING | Executive Director
 Mr. Chang Shih Hsing, aged 44, was appointed to the Board on May 28, 1997 and is an  executive director. 

 He is the Deputy General Manager of Shanghai Huan Hsin Electronics Co., Ltd. As the head of the production division, he is 
responsible for the technical aspects of the operations, quality management and research and development. He also oversees 
employee training programs and human resource development and management. He has a general diploma and has been with 
the Group since 1985. 

 He holds directly 2,090,066 shares and share options for 180,000 shares in the Company. He attended four (4) of the five (5) 
Board Meetings held in the financial year.  He is the brother-in-law of Mr. Hsu Hung Chun. He was last re-elected on April 18, 
2005.
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新加坡办公室  奂鑫控股有限公司
SINGAPORE OFFICE   Huan Hsin Holdings Ltd (Company No. 199509142R)
 3 Shenton Way #15-08 Shenton House Singapore 068805 
 Tel: 65-62257910 (2 lines) Fax: 65-62257150
 
马来西亚工厂 奂鑫马来西亚有限公司
MALAYSIA FACTORY Huan Hsin Co. (M) Sdn. Bhd. (Company No. 181556-X) 
 Plot 3 Bakar Arang Industrial Estate 08000 Sungai Petani Kedah Malaysia  
 Tel: 60-4-4218866 (5 lines) Fax: 60-4-4213366/4226385
 
中国工厂 上海奂鑫电子有限公司
CHINA FACTORY 中国201705上海市清浦区风溪镇北青公路4469号
 Shanghai Huan Hsin Electronics Co., Ltd
 No. 4469 Beiqing Road Fengxi Town  
 Qingpu District Shanghai 201705 China 
 Tel: 86-21-59770666 Fax: 86-21-59771688/59772608 
  
 上海宜鑫实业有限公司
 上海展鑫实业有限公司
 中国201108上海市闵行区颛桥镇中春路2666号
 Shanghai Yi Hsin Industry Co., Ltd
 Shanghai Zhan Hsin Industry Co., Ltd 
 No. 2666 Zhongchun Road Zhuanqiao Town   
 Minghang District Shanghai 201108 China
 Tel: 86-21-64892888 Fax: 86-21-64892626/64892828

 上海奂亿科技有限公司
 中国201108上海市闵行区颛桥镇中春路1288号
 Shanghai Huan Yi Technology Co., Ltd

 No. 1288 Zhongchun Road Zhuanqiao Town
 Minhang District Shanghai 201108 China
 Tel: 86-21-64909266 Fax: 86-21-64908108
  
 展运（上海）电子有限公司
 中国201613上海市松江出口加工区茸江路8弄1号
 Zhan Yun (Shanghai) Electronics Co., Ltd
 No. 1 Alley 8 Rongjiang Road  
 Songjiang Export Processing Zone  
 Shanghai 201613 China
 Tel:  86-21-57748200 Fax: 86-21-57748050
    
 山东东鑫电子有限公司
 中国264203山东省威海市蓬莱路296号
 Shandong Dong Hsin Electronics Co., Ltd
 No. 296 Penglai Road Weihai Shandong Province 264203 China
 Tel: 86-631-5780666  Fax: 86-631-5780988
  
台北分公司 英属维京群岛商旌鑫有限公司 (统一编号 16080562)
 TAIPEI BRANCH 台湾221台北县汐止市大同路一段337巷16弄27号2楼 
 Huan Hsin (BVI) Limited Taipei Branch
 2F No. 27 Alley 16 Lane 337 Ta-Tung Road 
 Sec. 1 Hsi Chih Taipei Hsien 221 Taiwan  
 Tel: 886-2-86919298 Fax: 886-2-86463366
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Currently, Huan Hsin has grown into a leading notebook casing manufacturer 
with the capacity to meet 30% of global needs. Continued expansion and 
new product offerings have placed the Group on a firmer footing in terms of 
expanding our customer base and diversifying our earnings base.  

FY2005 had been a challenging year for the Group. Group revenue increased 
40% to S$660.3 million, due mainly to increased orders for products such as 
notebook casings, notebook peripherals and fax machine components and as 
well as printer casings and laser printer cartridges. 

Despite higher revenue, net profit attributable to shareholders eased 29% to 
S$22.8 million. This declined was primarily due to the higher cost of raw material 
consumed as a result of high oil prices, the start up costs of the Group’s new 
plants in Shandong (Weihai) and higher staff costs.  

FY2005 had been a challenging year 
for the Group. Group revenue 

increased 40% to S$660.3 million.



Operations Review

2005 Annual Report • HUAN HSIN HOLDINGS LTD 11

MOULD, MOULDED PLASTIC PRODUCTS 
AND FINISHED PRODUCT ASSEMBLY

This segment remains the Group’s star performer, contributing sales of S$614.1 
million that account for 93% of Group revenue. On a year-on-year basis, this 
division recorded a sales growth of 43% compared to S$430.7 million in FY2004.

Revenue growth in this segment was driven by higher orders for products such as 
notebook casing, notebook peripherals and fax machine components. In addition, 
production of printer-related products such as printer casings and laser cartridges 
at the new plant in Shandong (Weihai) broke even in the 3rd quarter of FY2005, 
and its sales contribution accounted for 12% of the segment revenue. 

On a year-on-year basis, 
this division recorded a sales 
growth of 43% compared to 
S$430.7 million in FY2004.



Operations Review

WIRE, CABLE AND RELATED COMPONENTS

Revenue for this segment, which contributed about 7% of Group 
revenue, increased 13% to S$45.3 million from S$40.2 million. Profit 
before tax for this segment declined 41% to S$2.1 million. 

This is due to the fact that the prices of copper wires, which form 
part of the major material costs in the manufacturing of phones and 
power cords, increased by more than 40% during the year.
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Revenue of this segment 
increased 13% to S$45.3 

million from S$40.2 million.
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Group Financial Highlights
as at December 31



Operating Results Of The Group Financial Year Ended

 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005

  S$’000 S$’000 S$’000 S$’000 S$’000

Revenue 114,434  171,304  335,757  471,388  660,270 

Profit before income tax 20,783   22,343  38,551  40,560  25,857 

Income tax 359  (2,413)  (3,998)  (3,968) (4,230)

Profit after income tax 21,142   19,930  34,553  36,592  21,627 

Minority interests 180  1,676   (4,751)  (4,362) 1,192 

Profit attributable to shareholders  21,322   21,606  29,802  32,230   22,819 

        

Basis earnings per ordinary share (cents)       

   

(i)  Based on the number of ordinary 
 shares in issue (note 1)  7.11   7.20   9.04  9.62   5.89 

(ii)  On a fully diluted basis (note 2)  NA  7.20   9.02  9.61  5.89 
 

Dividend per share - Gross (cents) 2.00   2.00  2.00  2.00  1.60 

Dividend per share - Net (cents) 2.00  2.00   2.00  2.00  1.60

Group Financial Highlights
as at December 31
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Group Financial Highlights
as at December 31

2005 Annual Report • HUAN HSIN HOLDINGS LTD 15

Financial Position Of The Group  As at

 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005

  S$’000  S$’000  S$’000  S$’000   S$’000 

       

Fixed assets 62,597   80,505  128,352  150,942  198,933 

Deferred tax assets  -  -  444   -   - 

Derivative financial instruments  -   -   -   -  916 

Investments 12,710  36,891  46,460  27,860  35,388 

Current assets 113,807  127,475  234,133  328,446  421,167 

Current liabilities  (26,432) (59,898) (130,812) (178,627) (257,145)

Net current assets 87,375   67,577   103,321   149,819  164,022 

Non-current liabilities (7,404)  (13,892)  (54,432)  (77,584)  (75,626)

  155,278  171,081  224,145   251,037  323,633 

Represented by :       

Shareholders’ funds   149,366  157,909   206,628   222,010  303,018 

Minority interests  5,912   13,172   17,517  29,027  20,615 

 155,278  171,081  224,145  251,037   323,633 
       

Net asset value per ordinary share (cents)        

(note 1)  49.78  52.63  61.68   66.27  75.75 

NOTES :          

(1) The earnings per ordinary share (“EPS”) and the net asset value per ordinary share (“NAV”) for 2005 are calculated based on weighted 
average number of ordinary shares in issue of  387,178,082 shares and issued share capital of  400,000,000 shares respectively. 
         

 The EPS and NAV for 2004 are calculated  on the issued share capital of 335,000,000 shares.     
             
The EPS and NAV for 2003 are calculated based on weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue of 329,630,137 shares and 
issued share capital of  335,000,000 shares respectively.        
  

 The EPS and NAV for 2001 and 2002 are calculated on the issued share capital of 300,000,000 shares.  The EPS and NAV for 2001 
have been restated to take into account the bonus issue of 50,000,000 ordinary shares issued in 2002.    
       

(2) Fully diluted EPS for 2005 is calculated based on weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue of  387,178,082 as the share 
option are anti-dilutive and are ignored in the calculation of diluted EPS.      
    

 Fully diluted EPS for 2002, 2003 and 2004 are calculated base on 300,057,303 ordinary shares, 330,547,999 ordinary shares and 
335,527,007 ordinary shares respectively assuming the full exercise of the employees’ share option outstanding during the year and 
adjusting for the number of ordinary shares in issue to reflect the effect of all potentially dilutive ordinary shares. In December 2001, 
there was no outstanding employees’ share options.        
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The directors present their report together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group and balance 
sheet and statement of changes in equity of the Company for the financial year ended December 31, 2005.

1	 DIRECTORS

 The directors of the Company in office at the date of this report are:

 Mr Hsu Hung Chun
 Mr Hsu Cheng Chien
 Mr Lim Hock Beng
 Mr Lau Ping Sum, Pearce
 Mr Hsu Ming Hung
 Mr Chang Shih Hsing
 Mr Chew Heng Ching 

2	 ARRANGEMENTS	TO	ENABLE	DIRECTORS	TO	ACQUIRE	BENEFITS
	 BY	MEANS	OF	THE	ACQUISITION	OF	SHARES	AND	DEBENTURES

 Neither at the end of the financial year nor at any time during the financial year did there subsist any arrangement 
whose object is to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares 
or debentures in the Company or any other body corporate, except for the Huan Hsin Share Option Scheme 
described below.

3	 DIRECTORS’	INTERESTS	IN	SHARES	AND	DEBENTURES

 The directors of the Company holding office at the end of the financial year had no interests in the share capital 
and debentures of the Company and related corporations as recorded in the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings 
kept by the Company under Section 164 of the Singapore Companies Act except as follows:

	 	 Shareholdings	in	which
	 Shareholdings	registered	 directors	are	deemed
	 in	the	names	of	directors	 to	have	an	interest	

	 	 At	beginning	 At	end	of	 At	beginning	 At	end	of
	 	 of	financial	year	 financial	year	 of	financial	year	 financial	year
 The Company
 Ordinary shares of $0.20 each

 Mr Hsu Hung Chun - - 75,712,234 75,712,234
 Mr Hsu Cheng Chien - 500,000 75,712,233 75,712,233
 Mr Hsu Ming Hung 750,000 750,000 - -
 Mr Chang Shih Hsing 2,090,066 2,090,066 120,000 120,000

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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3	 DIRECTORS’	INTERESTS	IN	SHARES	AND	DEBENTURES	(Cont’d)
	 	 Shareholdings	in	which
	 Shareholdings	registered	 directors	are	deemed
	 in	the	names	of	directors	 to	have	an	interest	

	 Options	to	subscribe	
	 for	ordinary	shares		 At	beginning	 At	end	of	 At	beginning	 At	end	of
	 of	$0.20	each	 of	financial	year	 financial	year	 of	financial	year	 financial	year

 (a) Subscription price at $0.90
   Exercise period:
   April 19, 2004
        to April 18, 2007

   Mr Lim Hock Beng 120,000 120,000 - -
   Mr Lau Ping Sum, Pearce 120,000 120,000 - -

   Mr Hsu Ming Hung 180,000 180,000 - -
   Mr Chang Shih Hsing - - 60,000 60,000

 (b) Subscription price at $0.72
   Exercise period:
   December 18, 2004
         to December 17, 2007

   Mr Chang Shih Hsing 180,000 180,000 - -

 By virtue of Section 7 of the Singapore Companies’ Act, Messrs Hsu Hung Chun and Hsu Cheng Chien are 
deemed to have interests in all the related corporations of the Company.  The directors’ interests as at January 
21, 2006 were the same as those at the end of the year.

4	 DIRECTORS’	RECEIPT	AND	ENTITLEMENT	TO	CONTRACTUAL	BENEFITS

 Since the beginning of the financial year, no director has received or become entitled to receive a benefit which 
is required to be disclosed under Section 201(8) of the Singapore Companies Act, by reason of a contract 
made by the Company or a related corporation with the director or with a firm of which he is a member, or with 
a Company in which he has a substantial financial interest except as disclosed in the financial statements and 
except that certain directors have received remuneration from related corporations in their capacity as directors 
and or executives of those related corporations.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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5	 OPTIONS	TO	TAKE	UP	UNISSUED	SHARES

a) The Huan Hsin Share Option Scheme (“Share Option Scheme”) was approved by the shareholders at the 
Extraordinary General Meeting held on May 21, 2001.  The Share Option Scheme is administered by the 
Company’s Remuneration Committee, comprising Messrs Lau Ping Sum, Pearce, Lim Hock Beng, Chew 
Heng Ching and Hsu Cheng Chien.

 Under the Share Option Scheme, an option entitles the option holder to subscribe for a specific number 
of new ordinary shares of $0.20 each in the Company comprised in the option at a subscription price per 
share determined with reference to the average of the last dealt prices for the shares of the Company on the 
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited for the 5 conservative market days immediately preceding 
the date of grant of the option.  The Remuneration Committee may at its discretion, fix that subscription price 
at a discount up to 20% off market price but not lower than the par value of the shares.  The consideration 
for the grant of an option is $1.00.  Options granted with the subscription price set at the market price shall 
only be exercised after the first anniversary but before the fifth anniversary of the date of grant of that option.  
Options granted with the market price set at a discount to the market price shall only be exercised after the 
second anniversary but before the fifth anniversary of the date of grant of that option.  The shares under 
option may be exercised in whole or in part on the payment of the relevant subscription price.  Options 
granted will lapse when the option holder ceases to be a full-time employee of the Company or any Company 
of the Group subject to certain exceptions at the discretion of the Remuneration Committee.

 Under the Share Option Scheme, share options granted and exercised during the financial year and 
outstanding as at December 31, 2005 were as follows:

	 	 	 Balance	 	 	 	 Balance

	 	 	 as	at	 	 	 Expired/	 as	at	 Subscription

	 	 Date	of	grant	 01.01.2005	 Granted	 Exercised	 Cancelled	 31.12.2005	 price		 Exercise	period

        $

  April 18, 2002 3,720,000 -  - (210,000) 3,510,000 0.90 April 19, 2004 to

         April 18, 2007

  December 17, 2002 300,000 -  - - 300,000 0.72 December 18, 2004

         to December 17, 

         2007

  March 21, 2003 1,080,000 -  - (120,000) 960,000 0.72 March 22, 2005 to

         March 21, 2008

   5,100,000 -  - (330,000) 4,770,000

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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5	 OPTIONS	TO	TAKE	UP	UNISSUED	SHARES	(Cont’d)

 Aggregate options granted to directors/controlling shareholders of the Company and their associates under the 
Share Option Scheme since the commencement of the scheme are as follows:

	 	 	 Options
	 	 Options	 granted	since	 	 	 Options
	 	 granted	 commencement	 	 	 outstanding
	 	 during	the	 of	scheme	 	 	 as	at
	 Directors	 financial	year	 to	31.12.2005	 Exercised	 Expired	 31.12.2005	 Expiry	date

 Mr Hsu Ming Hung - 180,000 - - 180,000 April 18, 2007
 Mr Chang Shih Hsing - 180,000 - - 180,000 December 17, 
         2007
 Mr Lim Hock Beng - 120,000 - - 120,000 April 18, 2007
 Mr Lau Ping Sum, 
     Pearce - 120,000 - - 120,000 April 18, 2007

 Associates of controlling shareholders

 Ms Hsu Bao Hwa - 60,000 - - 60,000 December 17, 
         2007
 Mr Yang Chao Shun - 60,000 - - 60,000 December 17, 
         2007

b) The number and proportion of options granted during the financial year at:

 i) a discount of 10% or less off market price - nil

 ii) a discount of more than 10% off market price - nil

 c) During the financial year, no employee received 5% or more of the total number of options available under 
the Share Option Scheme and no shares were issued at a discount to market price.

 d) During the financial year, no options to take up unissued shares of any subsidiary were granted and there 
were no shares of any subsidiary issued by virtue of the exercise of an option to take up unissued shares.

 e) These options do not entitle the holder to participate by virtue of the options, in any share issue of any other 
corporations.

 f) At the end of the financial year, there were no unissued shares of any subsidiary under option.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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6	 AUDIT	COMMITTEE

 The Audit Committee of the Company is chaired by Mr Lim Hock Beng, an independent director, and includes Mr 
Lau Ping Sum, Pearce, an independent director and Mr Chew Heng Ching, an independent director.  The Audit 
Committee has met four (4) times since the last Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) and has reviewed the following, 
where relevant, with the executive directors and external and internal auditors of the Company:

 a) the audit plans and results of the internal auditors’ examination and evaluation of the Group’s systems of 
internal accounting controls;

 b) the Group’s financial and operating results and accounting policies;

 c) the financial statements of the Company and the consolidated financial statements of the Group before their 
submission to the directors of the Company and external auditors’ report on those financial statements;

 d) the quarterly, half-yearly and annual announcements as well as the related press releases on the results 
and financial position of the Company and the Group;

 e) the co-operation and assistance given by the management to the Group’s external auditors; and

 f) the re-appointment of the external auditors of the Group.

 The Audit Committee has full access to and has the co-operation of the management and has been given the 
resources required for it to discharge its function properly.  It also has full discretion to invite any director and 
executive officer to attend its meetings.  The external and internal auditors have unrestricted access to the Audit 
Committee.

 The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board of Directors the re-appointment of Deloitte & Touche as 
external auditors of the Group at the forthcoming AGM of the Company.

7	 AUDITORS

 The auditors, Deloitte & Touche, have expressed their willingness to accept re-appointment.

ON BEHALF OF THE DIRECTORS

__________________________
Hsu Hung Chun

__________________________
Hsu Cheng Chien

March 3, 2006

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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We have audited the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the balance sheet and statement of changes 
in equity of Huan Hsin Holdings Ltd for the year ended December 31, 2005 set out on pages 23 to 69.  These financial 
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s directors.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing.  Those Standards require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made 
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  We believe that our audit provides 
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion,

a) the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the balance sheet and statement of changes in equity of 
the Company are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Singapore Companies Act, Cap. 50 
(the “Act”) and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs 
of the Group and of the Company as at December 31, 2005 and of the results, changes in equity and cash flows 
of the Group and the changes in equity of the Company for the year ended on that date; and

b) the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company and by those subsidiaries 
incorporated in Singapore of which we are the auditors have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions 
of the Act.

DELOITTE & TOUCHE
Certified Public Accountants
Singapore

William Lim Choon Hock
Partner
Appointed in 2003

March 3, 2006

AUDITORS’ REPORT
 TO THE MEMBERS OF HUAN HSIN HOLDINGS LTD
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	 Group	 Company
	 Note	 2005	 2004	 2005	 2004
	 	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000
ASSETS

Current	assets:
Cash and bank balances 6 80,663 51,167 4,951 4,322
Trade receivables 7 202,751 174,789 - -
Other receivables and prepaid
 expenses 8 21,727 19,665 32,258 14,157
Inventories 9 116,026   82,825      -      - 

Total current assets  421,167 328,446   37,209   18,479

Non-current	assets:
Associates 10 5,214 24,290 5,212 27,278
Subsidiaries 11 - - 156,106 122,799
Long-term receivables 12 - - 60,969 86,130
Available-for-sale investments 13 30,174 3,570 21,670 -
Derivative financial instruments 14 916 - 855 -
Land use rights 15 8,794 6,734 - -
Property, plant and equipment 16 190,139 144,208    1,647    1,688

Total non-current assets  235,237 178,802 246,459 237,895

Total	assets  656,404 507,248 283,668 256,374

BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2005
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	 Group	 Company
	 Note	 2005	 2004	 2005	 2004
	 	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000

LIABILITIES	AND	EQUITY

Current	liabilities:
Trade payables 17 175,904 135,706 - -
Other payables 18 15,098 12,413 1,661 2,008
Short-term bank loans 19 26,131 5,122 - -
Current portion of long-term
   bank loans 21 37,777 23,809 24,945 23,809
Income tax payable  2,235 1,577  - - 

Total current liabilities  257,145 178,627   26,606   25,817

Non-current	liabilities:
Long-term loan 20 - - 22,197 -
Long-term bank loans 21 75,561 77,584 14,967 77,584
Deferred tax liabilities 22 65 - - - 

Total non-current liabilities    75,626   77,584   37,164 77,584

Capital,	reserves	and	minority
			interests:
Share capital 23 80,000 67,000 80,000 67,000
Share premium  71,097 28,725 71,097 28,725
Capital reserve on share-based
   payment  241 - 241 -
Capital reserve on consolidation  - 956 - -
Hedging and foreign currency
   translation reserves  (4,567) (15,943) 855 (3,949)
Legal reserves  13,227 6,861 - -
Accumulated profits  143,020 134,411 67,705 61,197

Equity attributable to equity holders
   of the parent  303,018 222,010 219,898 152,973
Minority interests    20,615   29,027      -  - 

Total equity  323,633 251,037 219,898 152,973

Total	liabilities	and	equity  656,404 507,248 283,668 256,374

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2005
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	 	 Group
	 	 	 Note	 2005	 2004
	 	 	 	 $’000	 $’000

Revenue 24 660,270 471,388
Other operating income 25 9,445 9,218
Changes in inventories of finished goods
   and work-in-progress  29,379 9,056
Raw material and consumables used  (482,896) (276,120)
Staff costs 26 (64,742) (45,739)
Depreciation and amortisation  (17,410) (16,964)
Other operating expenses  (103,309)  (95,168)
Share of results of associates  2,137  (10,856)
Finance costs 27    (7,017)   (4,255)

Profit	before	income	tax 28 25,857 40,560
Income tax 29    (4,230)   (3,968)

Profit	for	the	year    21,627   36,592

Attributable to:
   Equity holders of the parent  22,819 32,230
   Minority interests     (1,192)    4,362

    21,627   36,592

Earnings per share (cents) 30
   Basic       5.89      9.62

   Fully diluted       5.89      9.61

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT
Financial year ended December 31, 2005



HUAN HSIN HOLDINGS LTD • 2005 Annual Report26

	 	 Group
	 	 	 Note	 2005	 2004
	 	 	 	 $’000	 $’000

Operating	activities
 Profit before income tax  25,857 40,560
 Adjustments for:
  Share of results of associates  (2,137) 10,856
  Depreciation and amortisation expense  17,410 16,964
  Share based payment expense  241 -
  Gain on disposal of investments  (3,865) (3,064)
  Loss on disposal of plant and equipment  178 84
  Plant and equipment written off  - 47
  Impairment loss on plant and equipment  155 - 
  Impairment loss on long-term investments  - 507
  Impairment of goodwill  546 -
  Loss on dilution of equity interest in investment  452 -
  Interest expense  7,017 4,255
  Interest income  (857)     (170)

 Operating cash flows before movements in working capital  44,997 70,039

  Trade receivables  (29,658) (48,213)
  Other receivables and prepaid expenses  (8,443) (4,455)
  Inventories  (34,577) (37,596)
  Trade payables  47,709 33,470
  Other payables    4,832   3,139

 Cash generated from operations  24,860 16,384

 Dividends paid  (8,800) (6,700)
 Income tax paid  (3,572) (3,541)
 Interest paid  (7,017) (4,255)
 Interest received  857      170

Net cash from operating activities  6,328   2,058

Investing	activities
 Additions to property, plant and equipment  (59,912) (45,706)
 Additions to land use rights  (1,947) (525)
 Proceeds from disposal of plant and equipment  288 238
 Acquisition of additional interests in a subsidiary
  from minority shareholders 32 (4,951) -
 Proceeds from disposal of investment  -   9,347
 Disposal of subsidiary 33 1,079    - 

Net cash used in investing activities  (65,443) (36,646)

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Financial year ended December 31, 2005
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	 Group
	 Note	 2005	 2004
	 	 $’000	 $’000

Financing	activities
 Proceeds from issue of placement shares 57,200 -
 Share issue expenses (1,828) -
 Increase in long-term bank loans 11,945 33,353
 Short-term bank loan 21,009 1,022
 Dividends paid to minority shareholder (4,036) -
 Contributions from minority shareholder -    7,989

Net cash from financing activities   84,290 42,364

Net	effect	of	exchange	rate	changes	in	consolidating	subsidiaries    4,321  (5,707)

Increase in cash and cash equivalents during the year 29,496 2,069
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of financial year    51,167 49,098

Cash	and	cash	equivalents	at	end	of	financial	year 6 80,663 51,167

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Financial year ended December 31, 2005
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Financial year ended December 31, 2005
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	 	 	 	 	 Hedging
	 	 	 	 Capital	reserve	 and
	 	 Share	 Share	 on	share-	 translation	 Accumulated
	 Note	 capital	 premium	 based	payment	 reserves		 profits	 Total
	 	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000

Company

Balance	at	January	1,	2004	 	 67,000	 28,725	 -	 (2,837)	 67,632	 160,520
Currency	translation	differences	 	 -	 -	 -	 (1,112)	 -	 (1,112)
Net	profit	for	the	year	 	 -	 -	 -	 -	 265	 265
Dividends	paid	 31	 -	 -	 -	 -	 (6,700)	 (6,700)

Balance	at	January	1,	2005	 	 67,000	 28,725	 -	 (3,949)	 61,197	 152,973
Effect	of	adoption	of	FRS	21	 	 -	 -	 -	 3,949	 (3,949)	 -
Effect	of	adoption	of	FRS	39	 	 -	 -	 -	 368	 -	 	368

Restated	balance	 	 67,000	 28,725	 -	 368	 57,248	 153,341
Net	profit	for	the	year	 	 -	 -	 -	 -	 19,257	 19,257
Recognition	of	share-based	payments	 	 -	 -	 241	 -	 -	 241
Gain	on	cash	flow	hedges	 	 -	 -	 -	 487	 -	 487
Dividends	paid	 31	 -	 -	 -	 -	 (8,800)	 (8,800)
Issued	placement	shares	 	 13,000	 44,200	 -	 -	 -	 57,200
Shares	issue	expenses	 	 -	 	(1,828)	 -	 -	 -	 (1,828)

Balance	at	December	31,	2005	 	 80,000	 71,097	 241	 855	 67,705	 219,898

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Financial year ended December 31, 2005
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2005

1	 GENERAL

 The Company (Registration Number 199509142R) is incorporated in the Republic of Singapore with its principal 
place of business at 3 Shenton Way, #15-08 Shenton House, Singapore 068805 and registered office at 6 
Shenton Way, #28-09 DBS Building Tower Two, Singapore 068809.  The Company is listed on the mainboard 
of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited.  The financial statements are expressed in Singapore 
dollars.

 The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and the provision of services to its subsidiaries.

 The principal activities of the associates and subsidiaries are disclosed in Notes 10 and 11 to the financial 
statements respectively.

 The financial statements of the Company and of the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year 
ended December 31, 2005 were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on March 3, 2006.

2	 SUMMARY	OF	SIGNIFICANT	ACCOUNTING	POLICIES

 BASIS OF ACCOUNTING - The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost 
convention, except as disclosed in the accounting policies below, and are drawn up in accordance with the 
provisions of the Singapore Companies Act and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (“FRS”).

 In the current financial year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised FRSs and Interpretations of FRS 
(“INT FRS”) issued by the Council on Corporate Disclosure and Governance that are relevant to its operations 
and effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2005.  The adoption of these new/revised FRSs 
and INT FRSs has no material effect on the financial statements except as disclosed below.

	 (a)	 FRS	39	-	Financial	Instruments:	Recognition	and	Measurement

  FRS 39 prescribes requirements  for the recognition and measurement of financial assets and liabilities. The 
new accounting standard moves measurement from a cost base to a fair value base for certain categories 
of financial assets and liabilities.  The change in accounting policy has been accounted for prospectively 
in accordance with the transitional provisions of FRS 39.  The adoption of FRS 39 has resulted in certain 
investments being carried at their respective fair values with the corresponding adjustments being taken to 
the revaluation reserves or the profit and loss statement.

 Derivative financial instruments with fair value of $368,000 (assets) as at January 1, 2005 were recognised 
in the balance sheet and the resulting adjustments transferred to the hedging reserve.

 Derivative financial instruments were carried at fair value at the balance sheet date. At December 31, 
2005, the derivative financial instruments were fair valued at $916,000 (assets).  The fair value changes 
were recognised of hedges that were determined to be effective in the hedging reserve in equity. 

 As the revised accounting policy has been applied prospectively, the change has had no impact on 
amounts reported for 2004 or prior periods.
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2	 SUMMARY	OF	SIGNIFICANT	ACCOUNTING	POLICIES	(Cont’d)

	 (b)	 FRS	102	-	Share-based	Payment
  
  FRS 102 Share-based Payment requires the recognition of equity-settled share-based payments at fair 

value at the date of grant and the recognition of liabilities for cash-settled share-based payments at the 
current fair value at each balance sheet date.  Prior to the adoption of FRS 102, the Group did not recognise 
the financial effect of share-based payments until such payments were settled.

  In accordance with the transitional provisions of FRS 102, the accounting standard has been applied 
retroactively to all grants of equity instruments after November 22, 2002 that were unvested as of January 
1, 2005 and to liabilities for share-based transactions existing at January 1, 2005.  The accounting standard 
therefore applies to share options granted in 2004 and 2005.

  The directors have made an assessment and concluded that the retrospective adjustment of $241,000 is 
not significant.  Accordingly, no restatement to the comparative financial statements has been made.

  For 2005, the impact of share-based payments is a net charge to income of $241,000.  At December 31, 
2005, the share options reserve amounted to $241,000.

  The share-based payments expense is included in the staff costs line item in the profit and loss statement.

	 (c)	 FRS	103	–	Business	Combinations
  
	 	 Goodwill

  FRS 103 has been adopted for financial year beginning January 1, 2004.  The options of limited retrospective 
application of the accounting standard has not been taken up thus avoiding the need to restate past business 
combinations.  The Group had no acquisition during the preceding financial years.

  The change has had no impact on amounts reported for 2004 or prior periods as the Group has no goodwill 
carried forward.

	 	 Excess	of	acquirer’s	 interest	 in	 the	net	 fair	value	of	acquiree’s	 identifiable	assets,	 liabilities	and	
contingent	liabilities	over	cost	(previously	known	as	negative	goodwill)

  FRS 103 requires that, after reassessment, any excess of the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the 
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of the business combination 
should be recognised immediately in the profit and loss statement.  FRS 103 prohibits the recognition of 
negative goodwill in the balance sheet.

  Previously, capital reserve on consolidation arising from acquisition of subsidiaries and associates are 
directly adjusted against shareholders’ equity.

  In accordance with the transitional provisions of FRS 103, the Group has applied the revised accounting 
policy prospectively from January 1, 2005.  Therefore, the change has had no impact on amounts reported 
for 2004 or prior periods.

  The carrying amount of negative goodwill at January 1, 2005 has been derecognised at the transition 
date. Therefore, an adjustment of $956,000 is made to opening retained earnings and negative goodwill at 
January 1, 2005.

  There is no impact of the change in accounting policy in 2005.
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2	 SUMMARY	OF	SIGNIFICANT	ACCOUNTING	POLICIES	(Cont’d)

	 (d)	 FRS	21	(r2004)	-	The	Effects	of	Changes	in	Foreign	Exchange	Rates

  FRS 21 (r2004) requires exchange differences arising on monetary items treated as part of a reporting 
entity’s net investment in a foreign operation to be recognised in the income statement at the company and 
investee level. Previously, the exchange differences were included in the Company’s currency translation 
reserve. 

  The Group early adopted the amendments to FRS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates 
on net investment in a foreign operation.  On consolidation, these exchange differences arising on monetary 
items treated as part of a reporting entity’s net investment in a foreign operation of the reporting entity or 
the investee are taken to foreign currency translation reserve until disposal, at which time they are taken to 
profit and loss.  

  Adjustments as a result of this change are done prospectively from January 1, 2005 as the effects of this 
change is not material.

  At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the FRSs and INT FRSs that were issued but not 
effective include the following:

FRS 40 - Investment Property
FRS 106 - Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources
FRS 107 - Financial Instruments:  Disclosures
INT FRS 104 - Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease
INT FRS 105 - Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, Restoration and Environmental 

Rehabilitation Funds
INT FRS 106 - Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific Market-Waste Electrical and 

Electronic Equipment
INT FRS 107 - Applying the Restatement Approach under FRS 29 Financial Reporting in 

Hyperinflationary Economies

  Amendments to FRS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements on Capital Disclosures.

  Amendments to FRS 39 Financial Instruments:  Recognition and Measurement on hedge accounting 
provisions, fair value option and financial guarantee contracts.

  Amendments to FRS 101 First-time Adoption of Financial Reporting Standards on comparative disclosures 
for FRS 106 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources.

  Amendments to FRS 104 Insurance Contracts on financial guarantee contracts.

  Consequential amendments were also made to various standards as a result of these new/revised 
standards.

  The directors anticipate that the adoption of the above FRS, INT FRS and amendments in future periods 
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Company and of the Group.
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2	 SUMMARY	OF	SIGNIFICANT	ACCOUNTING	POLICIES	(Cont’d)

 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION - The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the 
Company and entities controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has 
the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

 
 The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated profit and loss 

statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

 Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting 
policies into line with those used by other members of the Group.

 All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

 Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group’s equity 
therein.  Minority interests consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the original business combination 
(see below) and the minority’s share of changes in equity since the date of the combination.  Losses applicable to 
the minority in excess of the minority’s interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interests of the 
Group except to the extent that the minority has a binding obligation and is able to make an additional investment 
to cover its share of those losses.

 In the Company’s financial statements, investments in subsidiaries and associates are carried at cost less any 
impairment in net recoverable value that has been recognised in the profit and loss statement.

 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS - The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the purchase method.  
The cost of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets 
given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the 
acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the business combination.  The acquiree’s identifiable assets, 
liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition under FRS 103 Business Combinations 
are recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date, except for non-current assets (or disposal groups) that 
are classified as held for sale in accordance with FRS 105 Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued 
Operations, which are recognised and measured at fair value less costs to sell.

 Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and initially measured at cost, being the excess of the 
cost of the business combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities 
and contingent liabilities recognised.  If, after reassessment, the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the 
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the business combination, 
the excess is recognised immediately in the consolidated profit and loss statement.

 The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is initially measured at the minority’s proportion of the net fair 
value of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.
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2	 SUMMARY	OF	SIGNIFICANT	ACCOUNTING	POLICIES	(Cont’d)

 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the Group’s balance 
sheet when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

	 Trade	and	other	receivables

 Trade and other receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair value, and are subsequently measured 
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.  Appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable 
amounts are recognised in the profit and loss statement when there is objective evidence that the asset is 
impaired.  The allowance recognised is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and 
the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial 
recognition.

	 Investments

 Investments are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis where the purchase or sale of an investment 
is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the investment within the timeframe established by the market 
concerned, and are initially measured at fair value and in the case of investments not at fair value through profit 
or loss, plus directly attributable transaction costs.

 At subsequent reporting dates, debt securities that the group has the expressed intention and ability to hold 
to maturity (held-to-maturity debt securities) are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate 
method, less any impairment loss recognised to reflect irrecoverable amounts.  An impairment loss is recognised 
in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference 
between the investment’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at 
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition. Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods 
when an increase in the investment’s recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event occurring after 
the impairment was recognised, subject to the restriction that the carrying amount of the investment at the date 
the impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not 
been recognised.

 Investments other than held-to-maturity debt securities are classified as either investments held for trading or as 
available-for-sale, and are measured at subsequent reporting dates at fair value.  Where securities are held for 
trading purposes, gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are included in profit or loss for the period.  
For available-for-sale investments, gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are recognised directly in 
equity, until the security is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss 
previously recognised in equity is included in the profit or loss for the period.  Impairment losses recognised in 
profit or loss for equity investments classified as available-for-sale are not subsequently reversed through profit 
or loss.  Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss for debt instruments classified as available-for-sale are 
subsequently reversed through profit or loss if an increase in the fair value of the instrument can be objectively 
related to an event occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.

	 Cash	and	cash	equivalents

 Cash and bank balances comprise cash on hand and demand deposits that are readily convertible to a known 
amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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2	 SUMMARY	OF	SIGNIFICANT	ACCOUNTING	POLICIES	(Cont’d)

	 Financial	liabilities	and	equity

 Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified according to the substance of the 
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.  An 
equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all 
of its liabilities.  The accounting policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out 
below.

	 Bank	borrowings

 Interest-bearing bank loans are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost, using the effective interest rate method.  Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and 
the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in the profit and loss 
statement.

	 Trade	and	other	payables

 Trade  and other payables are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, 
using the effective interest rate method.

	 Equity	instruments

 Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

	 Derivative	financial	instruments	and	hedge	accounting

 The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risk of changes in foreign exchange rates and interest 
rates.

 The significant interest rate risk arises from interest bearing bank deposits and bank loans.  The Group’s policy is 
to convert a proportion of its floating rate debt to fixed rates.  The Group designates these as cash flow hedges 
of interest rate risk.

 The use of financial derivatives is governed by the Group’s policies approved by the board of directors, which 
provide written principles on the use of financial derivatives consistent with the Group’s risk management strategy. 
The Group does not use derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes.

 Derivative financial instruments are initially measured at fair value on the contract date, and are remeasured to 
fair value at subsequent reporting dates.

 Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments that are designated and effective as hedges of future 
cash flows are recognised directly in equity and the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss.  
The Group’s policy with respect to hedging the foreign currency risk of a firm commitment is to designate it as a 
cash flow hedge.  If the cash flow hedge of a firm commitment or forecast transaction results in the recognition of 
an asset or a liability, then, at the time the asset or liability is recognised, the associated gains or losses on the 
derivative that had previously been recognised in equity are included in the initial measurement of the asset or 
liability. For hedges that do not result in the recognition of an asset or a liability, amounts deferred in equity are 
recognised in profit or loss in the same period in which the hedged item affects profit or loss.
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2	 SUMMARY	OF	SIGNIFICANT	ACCOUNTING	POLICIES	(Cont’d)

 Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised 
in profit or loss as they arise.

 Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or no 
longer qualifies for hedge accounting.  At that time, for forecast transactions, any cumulative gain or loss on the 
hedging instrument recognised in equity is retained in equity until the forecast transaction occurs.  If a hedged 
transaction is no longer expected to occur, the net cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is transferred to 
profit or loss for the period.

 Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments or other non-financial host contracts are treated as separate 
derivatives when their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contract and the host 
contract is not carried at fair value with unrealised gains or losses reported in profit or loss.

 INVENTORIES - Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.  Costs comprise direct 
materials and, where applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing 
the inventories to their present location and condition.  Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.  Net 
realisable value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of completion and costs to be 
incurred in marketing, selling and distribution.

 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

 Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of assets, over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method, on the following bases:

 Leasehold land and buildings - 10 to 71 years
 Plant and equipment - 5 to 10 years
 Motor vehicles - 5 years

 No depreciation is provided on construction-in-progress.

 The gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the 
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amounts of the asset and is recognised in the profit and 
loss statement.

 LAND USE RIGHTS - Land use rights are measured initially at cost and amortised on a straight-line basis over 
the terms of the land use right certificates.

 GOODWILL - Goodwill arising on the acquisition of a subsidiary represents the excess of the cost of acquisition 
over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of 
the subsidiary recognised at the date of acquisition.  Goodwill is initially recognised as an asset at cost and is 
subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
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2	 SUMMARY	OF	SIGNIFICANT	ACCOUNTING	POLICIES	(Cont’d)

 For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units expected 
to benefit from the synergies of the combination.  Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated are 
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired.  If the 
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss 
is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets 
of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.  An impairment loss recognised 
for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

 On disposal of a subsidiary or a jointly controlled entity, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the 
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

 The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate is described under ‘Associates’ below.

 IMPAIRMENT OF TANGIBLE AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS EXCLUDING GOODWILL - At each balance sheet 
date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is 
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.  If any such indication exists, the recoverable 
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).  Where it is not 
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount 
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

 Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use.  In assessing value in use, the 
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current 
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

 If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, 
the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss 
is recognised immediately in the profit and loss statement.

 Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is 
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not 
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the 
asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years.  A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the 
profit and loss statement.

 RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURE - Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an 
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

 ASSOCIATES - An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence and that is neither a 
subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture.  Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and 
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those policies.

 The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these financial statements using the equity 
method of accounting.  Under the equity method, investments in associates are carried in the consolidated 
balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of the 
associate, less any impairment in the value of individual investments.  Losses of an associate in excess of the 
Group’s interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the 
Group’s net investment in the associate) are not recognised.
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2	 SUMMARY	OF	SIGNIFICANT	ACCOUNTING	POLICIES	(Cont’d)

 Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, 
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill.  
The goodwill is included within the carrying amount of the investment and is assessed for impairment as part 
of the investment.  Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and 
contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in the consolidated 
profit and loss statement.

 Where a Group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of 
the Group’s interest in the relevant associate.

 PROVISIONS - Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event, 
and it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation.  Provisions are measured at the directors’ 
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date, and are discounted to 
present value where the effect is material.

 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS - The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain employees.  
Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at fair value (excluding the effect of non market-based 
vesting conditions) at the date of grant.  The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-
based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of 
shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non market-based vesting conditions.

 Fair value is measured using the Binomial Option Pricing Model.  The expected life used in the model has been 
adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and 
behavioural considerations.

 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS AND TRANSLATION - The individual financial statements of each 
Group entity are presented in the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (its 
functional currency).  The consolidated financial statements of the Group and the balance sheet of the Company 
are presented in Singapore dollars, which is the functional currency of the Company, and the presentation 
currency for the consolidated financial statements.

 In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s 
functional currency are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction.  At each 
balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on 
the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are 
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.  Non-monetary items that are 
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

 Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on retranslation of monetary items are 
included in profit or loss for the period.  Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items 
carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period except for differences arising on the retranslation 
of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly in equity.  For such non-
monetary items, any exchange component of that gain or loss is also recognised directly in equity.
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2	 SUMMARY	OF	SIGNIFICANT	ACCOUNTING	POLICIES	(Cont’d)

 For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign 
operations (including comparatives) are expressed in Singapore dollars using exchange rates prevailing on the 
balance sheet date.  Income and expense items (including comparatives) are translated at the average exchange 
rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuated significantly during that period, in which case the exchange 
rates at the dates of the transactions are used.  Exchange differences arising, if any, are classified as equity and 
transferred to the Group’s translation reserve.  Such translation differences are recognised in profit or loss in the 
period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.

 On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreign entities 
(including monetary items that, in substance, form part of the net investment in foreign entities), and of borrowings 
and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are taken to the foreign currency 
translation reserve.

 Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and 
liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

 REVENUE RECOGNITION - Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable 
and represents amounts receivable for goods provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts and 
sales related taxes.

 Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and title has passed.

 Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest 
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life 
of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.

 Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been 
established.

 RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS - Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as 
an expense as they fall due.  Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes, such as the Singapore 
Central Provident Fund are dealt with as defined contribution plans where the Group’s obligations under the 
scheme are equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution retirement benefit plan.

 EMPLOYEE LEAVE ENTITLEMENT - Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue 
to employees.  A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by 
employees up to the balance sheet date.

 INCOME TAX - Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

 The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.  Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in 
the profit and loss statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in 
other years and it further excludes items that are not taxable or tax deductible.  The Group’s liability for current tax 
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted in countries where the subsidiaries 
operate by the balance sheet date.
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2	 SUMMARY	OF	SIGNIFICANT	ACCOUNTING	POLICIES	(Cont’d)

 Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial 
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using 
the balance sheet liability method.  Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary 
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be 
available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.  Such assets and liabilities are not 
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business 
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting 
profit.

 Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and 
associates, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable 
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent 
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be 
recovered.

 Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or 
the asset realised.  Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss, except when it relates to items charged or 
credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets 
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the 
Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

 LEGAL RESERVE - Certain subsidiaries are required by laws established in their respective countries of 
incorporation to set aside certain percentage of their annual net profit after tax less prior years’ losses, if any, 
as legal reserve until the accumulated reserve has reached an amount equal to the subsidiary’s paid-up capital.  
This legal reserve can be used to offset a deficit in the retained earnings.  It may be transferred to capital when 
the legal reserve reaches a level equivalent to a certain percentage of the subsidiary’s paid-up capital.

3	 CRITICAL	ACCOUNTING	JUDGEMENTS	AND	KEY	SOURCES	OF	ESTIMATION	UNCERTAINTY

	 Critical	judgements	in	applying	the	entity’s	accounting	policies

 In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management is of the opinion that there are no critical 
judgemetns involved that have significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

	 Key	sources	of	estimation	uncertainty

 The management is of the opinion that there are no key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet 
date that have a significant effect on the amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
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4	 FINANCIAL	RISKS	AND	MANAGEMENT

 The Group’s overall risk management policy seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial 
performance of the Group.

	 a)	 Credit	risk

  Credit risk refers to the risk that debtors will default on their obligations to repay the amount owing to the 
Group, resulting in a loss to the Group.  The Group has adopted procedures in extending credit terms to 
customers and in monitoring its credit risk.

  The credit policy includes guidelines on extending credit terms to customers including monitoring the process 
and using of related industry’s practices as reference.  This includes assessing and valuation of customer’s 
credit reliability and periodic review of the financial status to determine credit limits to be granted.

  The maximum exposure to credit risk in the event that the counterparties fail to perform the obligations as at 
the end of the financial year in relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the carrying amount 
of those assets as stated in the balance sheets.

  The Group has no significant concentration of credit with any debtor or group of debtors.

	 b)	 Interest	rate	risk

  The Company and the Group’s primary interest rate risk relates to interest bearing bank deposits and bank 
loans.  The interest rates and term of repayment of the bank loans are disclosed in the notes to the financial 
statements.  The Group sometimes borrows at variable rates and uses interest rate swaps as cash flow 
hedges of future interest payments, which have the economic effect of converting borrowings sum from 
floating to fixed rates.  Under the interest rate swaps, the Group agrees with other party to pay or receive, at 
specified intervals, the difference between fixed contract rates and floating rate interest amounts calculated 
by reference to the agreed notional principal amounts.

	 c)	 Foreign	currency	risk

  The Group’s foreign currency exposures arose mainly from the exchange rate movements of the United 
States dollar, Renminbi, New Taiwan dollar and the Singapore dollar which is also the Group’s presentation 
currency.

  These exposures are managed primarily by using natural hedges that arise from matching cash flows from 
assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies.

	 d)	 Liquidity	risk

  Management is of the view that the Group has sufficient accumulated profits to fund its operations.

	 e)	 Fair	values	of	financial	assets	and	financial	liabilities

  The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other current receivables and payables 
and other liabilities approximate their fair values due to the relatively short term maturity of these financial 
instruments.  The fair values of other classes of financial assets and liabilities are disclosed in the respective 
notes to financial statements.
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5	 RELATED	PARTY	TRANSACTIONS

 Related parties are entities with common direct or indirect shareholders and/or directors.  Parties are considered 
to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other 
party in making financial and operating decisions.

 Some of the Group’s transactions and arrangements are with related parties and the effects of these transactions 
on the basis determined between the parties are reflected in these financial statements.  The balances are 
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand unless otherwise stated.

 Significant transactions with the related parties are as follows:

	 Shareholders/directors	 Associates
	 2005	 2004	 2005	 2004
	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000

 Sales -  -  (2,626) (2,760)
 Rental income -  -  (1,622) (2,059)
 Purchases -  -  5,875 372
 Disposal of plant and equipment (22) -  - -
 Rental expense 85 81 - -
 License fee 10 10 - -

 The amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash.  No guarantees have been given or received.  
No expense has been recognised in the year for bad or doubtful debts in respect of the amounts owed by related 
parties.

	 Compensation	of	directors	and	key	management	personnel

 The remuneration of directors and other members of key management during the year was as follows:

	 Group
	 2005	 2004
	 $’000	 $’000

 Short-term benefits 4,198 6,240
 Post-employment benefits 17 7
 Shared based payments 241 - 

 The remuneration of directors is determined by the remuneration committee having regard to the performance of 
individuals and market trends.
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6	 CASH	AND	BANK	BALANCES
	 Group	 Company
	 2005	 2004	 2005	 2004
	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000

 Cash at bank 66,459 48,361 4,951 4,322
 Fixed deposits 14,060 2,661 - -
 Cash on hand 144 145 - -

 Total 80,663 51,167 4,951 4,322

 Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity 
of 3 months or less.  The carrying amounts of these assets approximate their fair values.

 Fixed deposits bear interest at an average rate of 3.68% (2004 : 2.00%) per annum and for a tenure of approximately 
90 days or less (2004 : 90 days or less).

 The Group’s and Company’s cash and bank balances that are not denominated in the functional currencies of the 
respective entities are as follow:

	 Group	 Company
	 2005	 2004	 2005	 2004
	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000

 United States dollars 53,501 26,416 4,887 1,507
 New Taiwan dollars - 37 - -
 Korean Won 1 1 - -
 Japanese Yen - 1 - -

7	 TRADE	RECEIVABLES
	 Group
	 	 2005	 2004
	 	 $’000	 $’000

 Amounts receivable from the sale of goods to: 
    Outside parties 204,914 175,669
    Less allowance for doubtful debts (3,410) (2,719)

  201,504 172,950
    Associates (Note 5) 1,247 1,839

 Total 202,751 174,789

 The Group’s trade receivables that are not denominated in the functional currencies of the respective entities are 
as follow:

	 Group
	 	 2005	 2004
	 	 $’000	 $’000

 United States dollars 173,817 140,193
 Japanese Yen 237 273
 Hong Kong dollars 178 180
 Euro 26 - 
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8	 OTHER	RECEIVABLES	AND	PREPAID	EXPENSES
	 Group	 Company
	 2005	 2004	 2005	 2004
	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000
 Subsidiaries (Note 11):
    Short-term advance - - 32,214 6,501
    Dividend receivable - - - 2,530
 Associates (Note 10) 2,630 2,551 - -
 Deposits 6,168 3,001 - -
 Prepayments 4,860 9,015 42 5,124
 Tax recoverable 3,853 3,415 - -
 Export duty refundable 2,239 - - -
 Others   2,298   1,834         2         2

  22,048 19,816 32,258 14,157
 Allowance for doubtful debts
    for other receivable    (321)     (151)    -     - 

  21,727 19,665 32,258 14,157

 The amounts due from subsidiaries and associates are non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free and repayable 
within the next twelve months.

 The Group’s and Company’s other receivables that are not denominated in the functional currencies of the 
respective entities are as follow:

	 Group	 Company
	 2005	 2004	 2005	 2004
	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000

 United States dollars 5,394 7,647 32,214 14,113

9	 INVENTORIES
	 Group
	 	 2005	 2004
	 	 $’000	 $’000

 Raw materials 58,728 54,906
 Work in progress 25,161 10,670
 Finished goods   32,137 17,249

  116,026 82,825

10	 ASSOCIATES
	 Group	 Company
	 2005	 2004	 2005	 2004
	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000

 Cost of investment in associates 20,669 42,735 20,669 42,735
 Impairment loss - - (15,457) (15,457)
 Share of post-acquisition loss (15,090) (15,496) - -
 Currency translation deficit (365)  (2,949) -  - 
    5,214 24,290   5,212 27,278
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10	 ASSOCIATES	(Cont’d)

 The details of the associates are as follows:
	 	 	 Proportion	of
	 Name	of	associate	and	 	 ownership	interest	and
	 country	of	incorporation/	 	 voting	power	held
	 operation	 Principal	activities	 by	the	Group	
	 	 2005	 2004
	 	 %	 %

 Gilroy Enterprises Pte Ltd Investment holding and 35 35
 [Singapore] provision of management
  services.

 Sheng Ding Pte Ltd Investment holding 40 40
 [Singapore] (a) [Note 37(b)]

 Shanghai Nichiei Precision Fabricating and repairing 30 30
 Mold Co., Ltd moulds used for electronic
 [People’s Republic of China  products
 (“PRC”)]

 Shanghai Koritsu Technologies Manufacturing casings of 35 35
 Co., Ltd  telecommunications and
 [PRC] electronic products

 Smart Idea Holdings Limited* Investment holding -* 24
 [Cayman Islands] (b)

* During the financial year, Smart Idea Holdings Limited (“Smart Idea”) increased its paid up capital, resulting 
in a dilution of the Company’s shareholding to 18.05% and ceased to be an associate.  The carrying amount 
of the Group’s investment in this associate, determined on an equity accounting basis, was $21,670,000 as 
at the date of this dilution and was reclassified to available-for-sale investments (Note 13).

 The dilution resulted in a loss amounting to $452,000 and is included in other operating expenses line item 
in the profit and loss statement.

(a) Significant subsidiary of Sheng Ding Pte Ltd is:

	 	 Name	of	subsidiary	and
	 	 country	of	incorporation/	 	 Group’s	effective
	 	 operation	 Principal	activities	 equity	interest	
	 	 2005	 2004
	 	 %	 %

  Shanghai Shun Ding Manufacturing and 40 40
  Technologies Ltd. sales of computers,
  [PRC]  servers and accessories
   for computers
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10	 ASSOCIATES	(Cont’d)

(b) Significant subsidiary of Smart Idea Holdings Limited is:

	 	 Name	of	subsidiary	and
	 	 country	of	incorporation/	 	 Group’s	effective
	 	 operation	 Principal	activities	 equity	interest	
	 	 2005	 2004
	 	 %	 %

  Unimicron Technology* Manufacture and sale of 18.05 24
  (Kunshan) Corp. [PRC] electronic components

 Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s associates is set out below:
	 Group
	 	 2005	 2004
	 	 $’000	 $’000

 Total assets 242,001 302,854
 Total liabilities (273,381) (210,405)

 Net (liabilities) assets  (31,380)   92,449

 Group’s share of associates’ net (liabilities) assets (13,388) 22,561
 Group’s share of accumulated losses of associates not recognised (1)   18,602     1,729

 Carrying amount of Group’s investment in associates    5,214   24,290

 Revenue 415,665 252,928

 Loss for the year  (33,926)  (29,598)

 Group’s share of associates’ loss for the year (14,736) (12,585)
 Group’s share of associate’s loss for the year not recognised (1)   16,873     1,729

 Group’s share of associates’ profit (loss) recognised for the year     2,137  (10,856)

(1) The Group has not recognised its share of losses amounting to $16,873,000 (2004 : $1,729,000) for Sheng 
Ding Pte Ltd and its subsidiary.  The Group’s share of accumulated losses not recognised were $18,602,000 
(2004 : $1,729,000).

11	 SUBSIDIARIES
	 Company
	 	 2005	 2004
	 	 $’000	 $’000

 Unquoted equity shares, at cost 156,106 124,835
 Impairment loss -    (2,036)

 Carrying amount 156,106 122,799
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11	 SUBSIDIARIES	(Cont’d)

 The details of the subsidiaries are as follows:
	 	 	 	 Proportion	of	
	 	 	 Principal	activities/	 ownership	interest
	 	 	 Country	of	incorporation	 and	voting	power	held
	 Name	of	subsidiary	 and	operation	 	by	the	Group	
	 	 2005	 2004
	 	 %	 %

 Bao-Ji Development Co., Ltd Investment holding/ 100 100
 (1a) Taiwan, Republic of China

 AMTEK System Co., Ltd (1a) Design, manufacture and sale of 100 100
   computer equipment and related parts/
   Taiwan, Republic of China

 Chaoji Holdings Pte Ltd Investment holding/ - 51
 (Note 32) Singapore

 Chaoji (BVI) Ltd (1a) Provide procurement services/ 100 51
 (Note 32) British Virgin Islands (“BVI”)

 Shanghai Yao Hsin Industry Co., Manufacture and sale 100 51
 Ltd (1c) (Note 32) of electronic products/
   People’s Republic of China (“PRC”)

 Huan Hsin (BVI) Ltd (1a) Purchasing of raw materials 100 100
   and marketing of telephone
   cords and accessories/
   BVI

 Huan Hsin Co. (M) Sdn Bhd (1b) Manufacture of telephone cords, 100 100
   telephone jacks, telephone
   handsets and power cords/
   Malaysia

 I.P. (BVI) Ltd (1a) Investment holding/ 100 100
   BVI

 Integrated Products Inc.,(2) Wholesales and marketing of wire 100 100
   and cable, plastic injection products    

 and telephone accessories/
   United States of America

 Infospeed Pte Ltd (Note 33) Investment holding/ - 55
   Singapore
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11	 SUBSIDIARIES	(Cont’d)
	 	 	 	 Proportion	of	
	 	 	 Principal	activities/	 ownership	interest
	 	 	 Country	of	incorporation	 and	voting	power	held
	 Name	of	subsidiary	 and	operation	 	by	the	Group	
	 	 2005	 2004
	 	 %	 %

 Shanghai Ju Hsin Electronics Manufacture and export of - 55
 Co, Ltd (1c) (Note 33) paper shredder machines,
   telephones, speakers and
   related products/
   PRC

 Infospeed (BVI) Limited  (1a) Provide procurement services/ - 55
 (Note 33) BVI

 Shanghai Huan Yi Technology Manufacture and export of 100 100
 Co., Ltd (1c) electronic products and
  components/
  PRC

 Shanghai Huan Hsin Electronics Manufacture and export of 100 100
 Co., Ltd (1c) telephone jacks, telephone
  cords, wires, AC/DC cords
  and various types of cables/
  PRC
  
 Shanghai Yi Hsin Industry Co., Colour-mixing of ABS resin, 100 100
 Ltd (1c) manufacture of telephone
  handset receivers and plastic
  injection moulding/
  PRC

 Shanghai Zhan Hsin Industry Co., Manufacture and repair of 100 100
 Ltd (1c) moulds/
  PRC

 Zhan Yun (Shanghai) Electronics Manufacture and sale of 51 51
 Co., Ltd (1c) components for computers
  and accessories/
  PRC

 Huan Hsin (China) Investment Investment holding/ 100 100
 Co., Ltd (1c) PRC

 Shandong Dong Hsin Electronics Produce and sale of office 100 100
 Co., Ltd (1c) automation products/
  PRC
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11	 SUBSIDIARIES	(Cont’d)
	 	 	 	 Proportion	of	
	 	 	 Principal	activities/	 ownership	interest
	 	 	 Country	of	incorporation	 and	voting	power	held
	 Name	of	subsidiary	 and	operation	 	by	the	Group	
	 	 2005	 2004
	 	 %	 %

 Suzhou HuanHsin Electronics Produce and sale of 100 100
 Co., Ltd (1c) electronic components/
  PRC

 Shanghai Heisei Electronics Produce and sales of moulds, 100 -
 Co., Ltd (1c) * moulds related standard
  parts and electronics
  accessories/
  PRC

	 Notes	on	auditors:

 The above subsidiaries are audited by Deloitte & Touche, Singapore except as indicated below:

1) Audited by overseas member firms of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as follows:

 a) Deloitte & Touche, Taiwan

 b) Deloitte KassimChan, Malaysia

 c) Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, PRC

2) Audited by another firm of auditors, Teng Accountancy Corporation.

 The place of operation of the subsidiaries is the same as the country of incorporation except for Huan Hsin (BVI) 
Ltd, Chaoji (BVI) Ltd, Infospeed (BVI) Limited and I.P. (BVI) Ltd which operate through their branches or offices 
in Taiwan.

 * During the year, the equity interest in the subsidiary was transferred from an associate, Gilroy Enterprises 
Pte Ltd to the Company for a consideration of $1.

12	 LONG-TERM	RECEIVABLES
	 Company
	 	 2005	 2004
	 	 $’000	 $’000

 Amounts receivable from subsidiaries - non-trade 60,969 86,130

 
 The Company assigned its rights, both present and future, title and interest in the amount of $28,271,000 (2004 

: $72,758,000 ) to a bank for loan facility granted [Note 21(d)].

 The long-term receivables are denominated in United States dollars.  These balances are unsecured, bear 
interest at 5.4% per annum and will not be repayable in the next twelve months.
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13	 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE	INVESTMENTS
	 Group	 Company
	 2005	 2004	 2005	 2004
	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000

 Unquoted equity shares, at cost 30,681 4,077 21,670 -
 Impairment loss    (507)   (507) -  - 

 Carrying amount 30,174 3,570 21,670 - 

 The impairment loss is included in the other operating expenses line item in the profit and loss statement.

 The investment in unquoted equity investments represent investment in companies that are engaged in 
manufacturing of multi layer printed circuit boards, switching power supply, fabrication of steel moulds and 
cultivate flowers by biotechnological.  Available-for-sale investments are carried at cost less impairment as it is 
not practical within the constraint of cost to reliably determined the fair value of the unquoted equity shares.

 The Group’s available-for-sale investments that are not denominated in the functional currencies of the respective 
entities are as follows:

	 Group	 Company
	 2005	 2004	 2005	 2004
	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000

 United States dollars 21,670 - 21,670 - 

14	 DERIVATIVE	FINANCIAL	INSTRUMENTS
	 Group	 Company
	 2005	 2004	 2005	 2004
	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000

 Interest rate swaps 916 - 855 - 

 Analysed as:
    Non-current 916 - 855 - 

 The Group uses interest rate swaps to manage its exposure to interest rate movements on its bank borrowings 
by swapping a proportion of those borrowings from floating rates to fixed rates. Contracts with nominal values of 
$79 million have fixed interest payments at an average rate of 3.52% per annum for periods up until June 2010 
and have floating interest receipts at USD Singapore Interbank Offered Rate per annum.

 The fair value of swaps entered into at December 31, 2005 is estimated at $916,000 (2004 : $368,000).  These 
amounts are based on quoted market prices for equivalent instruments at the balance sheet date. All of these 
interest rate swaps are designated and effective as cash flow hedges and their fair value changes have been 
recognised in equity. 
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15	 LAND	USE	RIGHTS
	 	 Group
	 	 $’000

 Cost:
    At January 1, 2004 7,161
    Additions 525
    Translation adjustments   (279)

    At January 1, 2005 7,407
    Additions 1,947
    Translation adjustments    338

    At December 31, 2005 9,692

 Accumulated	amortisation:
    At January 1, 2004 555
    Charge for the year 144
    Translation adjustments    (26)

    At January 1, 2005 673
    Charge for the year 192
    Translation adjustments       33

    At December 31, 2005     898

 Carrying	amount:
    At December 31, 2005 8,794

    At December 31, 2004 6,734

 As at December 31, 2005, the land use rights certificate for a land with a carrying value of $1,907,000 (2004 : 
$Nil) has yet to be issued by the relevant authority to a subsidiary.

 The land use rights represents premium paid for using the land for a term of 50 years from the date of grant of 
land use rights certificates.
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16	 PROPERTY,	PLANT	AND	EQUIPMENT
	 Leasehold
	 land	and	 Plant	and	 Motor	 Construction
	 buildings	 equipment	 vehicles	 in	progress	 Total
	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000
	 Group

	 Cost:
    At January 1, 2004 19,303 96,060 3,560 50,028 168,951
    Translation adjustments (1,262) (4,567) (142) (465) (6,436)
    Additions 268 9,010 532 35,896 45,706
    Disposals - (523) (25) - (548)
    Transfer on completion 18,243 30,244 226 (48,713) -
    Transfer out (a)     -   (4,426)    -     -    (4,426)

    At January 1, 2005 36,552 125,798 4,151 36,746 203,247
    Translation adjustments 1,715 6,252 181 714 8,862
    Additions 326 23,830 746 35,010 59,912
    Disposals - (1,188) (44) - (1,232)
    Transfer on completion 18,014 23,668 340 (42,022) -
    Disposal of subsidiary     -   (3,675)   (105)    (121)     (3,901)

    At December 31, 2005 56,607 174,685 5,269 30,327 266,888

	 Accumulated	depreciation:
    At January 1, 2004 5,151 39,737 2,248 - 47,136
    Translation adjustments (259) (2,002) (102) - (2,363)
    Depreciation for the financial year 1,964 14,449 407 - 16,820
    Disposals - (154) (24) - (178)
    Transfer out (a)     -    (2,445)    -     -    (2,445)

    At January 1, 2005 6,856 49,585 2,529 - 58,970
    Translation adjustments 323 2,258 115 - 2,696
    Depreciation for the financial year 2,358 14,309 551 - 17,218
    Disposals - (722) (44) - (766)
    Eliminated on disposal of 
      subsidiary -   (1,540)    (53)    -    (1,593)

    At December 31, 2005   9,537   63,890 3,098    -   76,525

	 Impairment:
    At January 1, 2004 - 69 - - 69
    Impairment loss recognised
       in the year - - - - - 

    At January 1, 2005 - 69 - - 69
    Impairment loss recognised
       in the year     - 155    -    -       155

    At December 31, 2005     - 224    -    -       224

	 Carrying	amount:
    At beginning of financial year 29,696   76,144 1,622 36,746 144,208

    At end of financial year 47,070 110,571 2,171 30,327 190,139

(a) In 2004, the cost of these equipment were reclassified to prepaid expenses.
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16	 PROPERTY,	PLANT	AND	EQUIPMENT	(Cont’d)
	 Leasehold
	 land	and	 Plant	and	 Motor	 Construction
	 buildings	 equipment	 vehicles	 in	progress	 Total
	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000
	 Company

	 Cost:
    At January 1, 2004 1,818 24 - - 1,842
    Additions    - 60    -    -     60

    At January 1, 2005
       and December 31, 2005 1,818 84    -    - 1,902

	 Accumulated	depreciation:
    At January 1, 2004 167 10 - - 177
    Depreciation for the
       financial year      26 11    -    -       37

    At January 1, 2005 193 21 - - 214
    Depreciation for the
       financial year      26 15    -    -      41

    At December 31, 2005    219 36    -    -    255

 Carrying amount:
    At beginning of financial year 1,625 63    -    - 1,688

    At end of financial year 1,599 48    -    - 1,647

 As at December 31, 2005, the title deed for a leasehold land with a carrying value of $244,000 (2004 : $244,000) 
has yet to be issued by the relevant authority to the subsidiary.

17	 TRADE	PAYABLES
	 Group
	 	 2005	 2004
	 	 $’000	 $’000

 Amounts payable for the purchases
    of goods from outside parties 173,958 134,473
 Associates (Note 5, 10)    1,946    1,233

  175,904 135,706

 The Group’s trade payables that are not denominated in the functional currencies of the respective entities are as 
follows:

	 Group
	 	 2005	 2004
	 	 $’000	 $’000

 United States dollars 107,918 73,654
 Singapore dollars 81 2
 Japanese yen 174 -
 New Taiwan dollars      -        8



HUAN HSIN HOLDINGS LTD • 2005 Annual Report54

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2005

18	 OTHER	PAYABLES
	 Group	 Company
	 2005	 2004	 2005	 2004
	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000

 Amounts due to subsidiaries (Note 11) - - 490 1,065
 Amounts due to directors 6 6 - -
 Accrued operating expenses 8,102 7,350 1,171 943
 Sundry creditors   6,990   5,057    -     - 

  15,098 12,413 1,661 2,008

 The amounts due to subsidiaries and directors are non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest free and repayable on 
demand.

 The Group’s and Company’s other payables that are not denominated in the functional currencies of the respective 
entities are as follow:

	 Group	 Company
	 2005	 2004	 2005	 2004
	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000

 United States dollars 1,718 990 1,278 1,635
 Singapore dollars 2,037 3,202 - -
 New Taiwan dollars 5 15 -  - 

19	 SHORT-TERM	BANK	LOANS
	 Group
	 	 2005	 2004
	 	 $’000	 $’000

 Unsecured bank loans payable
    on demand or within a year 26,131 5,122

 The loans that are not denominated in the functional currencies of the respective entities.

	 Group
	 	 2005	 2004
	 	 $’000	 $’000

 United States dollars 19,951    - 

 The average effective interest rates paid were 4.75% (2004 : 4.9%) per annum.

 The short-term loans of a subsidiary amounting to $6,180,000 (2004 : $5,122,000) are guaranteed by a fellow 
subsidiary.
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20	 LONG-TERM	LOAN

 The long-term loan from a subsidiary is denominated in United States dollars.  It is unsecured, bears interest at 
5.4% (2004 : Nil%) per annum and has a final maturity date of June 18, 2010. The management is of the opinion 
that the carrying amount of long-term loan approximates its fair value.

21	 LONG-TERM	BANK	LOANS
	 Group	 Company
	 2005	 2004	 2005	 2004
	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000

 Loan 1 - 6,568 - 6,568
 Loan 2 - 60,343 - 60,343
 Loan 3 39,912 34,482 39,912 34,482
 Loan 4   73,426 - -  - 

  113,338 101,393 39,912 101,393
 Less:  Current portion  (37,777)  (23,809) (24,945)  (23,809)

 Non-current portion   75,561   77,584 14,967   77,584

a) In 2004, Loan 1 of original drawn down amount US$8 million carried a negative pledge that the subsidiaries 
will not create or have outstanding security on or over their respective assets except as provided for in the 
credit agreement.  The loan was repayable in 3 instalments, with the last instalment of US$4 million due on 
May 2005.

 The loan bore interest at rates ranging from 4.34% to 4.83% (2004 : 3.17% to 3.77%) per annum.

b) In 2004, Loan 2 of original drawn down amount US$42 million carried a negative pledge that the Company 
and its subsidiaries will not create or have outstanding security on or over their respective assets except 
as provided for in the loan agreement.  The loan was also secured by the assignment of the Company’s 
right, both present and future, title and interest in receivables from subsidiaries amounting to $72,758,000 
(Note 12).  The loan was repayable in 8 equal bi-annual instalments commencing from December 2004.  
The loan bore fixed interest at rates of 4.78% and 5.35% per annum for amounts of US$22 million and 
US$10 million respectively.  The remaining loan amount of US$10 million bore interest at US$ SIBOR 
plus interest margin of 2% per annum.  This loan was refinanced by Loan 4 during the financial year.

c) Loan 3 of original drawn down amount US$24  million (2004 : US$21 million) for a revolving credit facility with 
final maturity due on July 2007.  The loan carries a negative pledge that the Company and its subsidiaries 
will not create or have outstanding security on or over their respective assets except as provided for in the 
loan agreement.  This loan bears interest at average of SIBOR plus a margin of 1.5% per annum.

d) Loan 4 of original drawn down amount US$48.5 million carries a negative pledge that the Company and 
its subsidiaries will not create or have outstanding security on or over their respective assets except as 
provided for in the loan agreement.  The loan is also secured by the corporate guarantee from the Company 
and an assignment of the Company’s right, both present and future, title and interest in receivables from 
subsidiaries amounting to $28,271,000 (Note 12).  The loan is repayable in 10 bi-annual instalments 
commencing from December 2005.  The loan bear interest at US$ SIBOR plus a margin of 1.5% per 
annum.
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21	 LONG-TERM	BANK	LOANS	(Cont’d)

 The Group’s and Company’s bank loans that are not denominated in the functional currencies of the respective 
entities are as follow:

	 Group	 Company
	 2005	 2004	 2005	 2004
	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000

 United States dollars 39,912 101,393 39,912 101,393

 The directors estimate the fair values of the Group’s borrowings as at the balance sheet date approximate their 
carrying values as the borrowings bear interest at floating rates.

 The average effective interest rates paid were as follows:
	 Group
	 2005	 2004
	 %	 %

 Long term bank loans 5.04 3.93

22	 DEFERRED	TAX	LIABILITIES

 The deferred tax liabilities recognised by the Group, and the movement thereon, during the current and prior 
reporting periods, are as follows:

  Accelerated
 Group tax depreciation

 At January 1, 2005 -
 Charge to profit or loss for the year 65

 At December 31, 2005 65

23	 SHARE	CAPITAL
 Group and Company
 2005 2004 2005 2004
 ‘000 ‘000 $’000 $’000
 Number of ordinary
 shares of $0.20 each

 Authorised 1,250,000 1,250,000 250,000 250,000

 Issued and fully paid:
    At beginning of the year 335,000 335,000 67,000 67,000
    Issue of shares       65,000       -   13,000      - 

    At end of the year    400,000    335,000   80,000   67,000

a) In 2005, the Company issued placement shares of 65,000,000 ordinary shares of $0.20 each for cash 
for repayment of bank loans, purchase of investment in subsidiaries and for the Group’s working capital 
purposes.  These shares issued ranked pari passu with the then existing ordinary shares of the Company.

b) As at the end of the financial year, the Company has 4,770,000 (2004 : 5,100,000) share options outstanding 
granted to its employees and directors as disclosed in paragraph 5(a) of the Directors’ Report.
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24	 REVENUE
	 Group
	 	 2005	 2004
	 	 $’000	 $’000

 Sale of goods 659,413 470,909
 Interest income 857 170
 Dividend income from available-for-sale investment (gross) -  309

  660,270 471,388

25	 OTHER	OPERATING	INCOME
	 Group
	 	 2005	 2004
	 	 $’000	 $’000

 Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments* - 3,064
 Gain on disposal of subsidiary 3,865 -
 Rental income  1,622 2,120
 Income from processing, sales and assembly of moulds 364 -
 Sundry income  922 674
 Sales of scrap 2,672 1,860
 Loss on disposal of plant and equipment - (84)
 Foreign exchange adjustment gain    -  1,584

  9,445 9,218

* In 2004, the carrying amount of the available-for-sale investment was $6,283,000 at the time of sale.  The 
proceeds from the disposal was $9,347,000, which resulted in a gain of $3,064,000.

26	 STAFF	COSTS

 (i) Number of directors of the Company in remuneration bands is as follows:
	 Group
	 	 2005	 2004

  $1,000,000 and above 2 2
  $750,000 to $999,999 - -
  $500,000 to $749,999 - -
  $250,000 to $499,999 - -
  Below 250,000   5     6  
     7     8* 

 * Included one director who resigned during the financial year.
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26	 STAFF	COSTS	(Cont’d)

	 Group
	 	 2005	 2004
	 	 $’000	 $’000

 (ii) Cost of defined contribution plan 2,223 1,415

 The employees of the subsidiaries are members of state-managed retirement benefit plans, operated by the 
respective local governments.  The subsidiaries are required to contribute a specified percentage of their 
payroll costs to the retirement scheme to fund the benefits.  The only obligation of the Group with respect to 
the retirement benefit plan is to make the specified contributions.

(iii) Share-based payments

	 	 Equity-settled	share	option	scheme

 The Company has a share option scheme for all employees and directors of the Company.  The scheme is 
administered by the Remuneration Committee.  Options are exercisable at a price based on the average of 
the last dealt prices for the shares of the Company on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited 
for the 5 consecutive market days immediately preceding the date of grant.  Options are exercisable at a 
subscription price determined with reference to the market price of the shares at the time of grant of the 
options.  The Remuneration Committee may at its discretion fix the exercise price at a discount not exceeding 
20% to the above price.  The vesting period is 1 year, and 2 years if exercise price at discount.  If the options 
remain unexercised after a period of 5 years from the date of the grant, the options expire.  Options are 
forfeited if the employee leaves the Group before the options vest.

 Details of the share options outstanding during the year are as follows:

	 	 	 The	Group	and	The	Company
	 	 	 2005	 2004
	 	 	 	 Weighted	 	 Weighted
	 	 	 	 average	 	 average
	 	 	 Number	of	 exercise	 Number	of	 exercise
	 	 	 share	options	 price		 share	options	 price	
	 	 	 	 $	 	 $

  Outstanding at the
     beginning of the year 5,100,000 0.85 5,370,000 0.85
  Forfeited during the year   (330,000) 0.83   (270,000) 0.86     
  Outstanding at the
     end of the year 4,770,000 0.85 5,100,000 0.85

  Exercisable at the
     end of the year 4,770,000  4,020,000 

  The options outstanding at the end of the year have a weighted average remaining contractual life of 1.8 
years (2004 : 2.8 years).
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26	 STAFF	COSTS	(Cont’d)

 These fair values were calculated using Binomial Option Pricing Model.  The inputs into the model were as 
follows:

	 Group
	 2005	 2004

  Weighted average share price 0.89 -
  Weighted average exercise price 0.72 -
  Expected volatility 31% -
  Expected life (years) 2 -
  Risk free rate 3.14% -
  Expected dividend yield 10% -

 Expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical volatility of the Company’s share price over 
the previous 1 year.  The expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on management’s best 
estimate, for the effects of non transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.

27	 FINANCE	COSTS
	 Group
	 	 2005	 2004
	 	 $’000	 $’000

 Interest expense on bank loans 7,017 4,255

28	 PROFIT	BEFORE	INCOME	TAX

 In addition to the charges and credits disclosed elsewhere in the notes to the profit and loss statement, this item 
includes the following charges (credits):

	 Group
	 	 2005	 2004
	 	 $’000	 $’000

 Directors’ remuneration:
    Directors of the Company 2,861 4,341
    Directors of subsidiaries 346 175
 Directors’ fees:
    Directors of the Company 315 295
 Auditors’ remuneration:
    Auditors of the Company 72 88
    Other auditors 289 342
 Non-audit fees paid to auditors:
    Auditors of the Company 10 13
    Other auditors 122 128



HUAN HSIN HOLDINGS LTD • 2005 Annual Report60

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2005

28	 PROFIT	BEFORE	INCOME	TAX	(Cont’d)
	 Group
	 	 2005	 2004
	 	 $’000	 $’000

 Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 17,218 16,820
 Amortisation of land use rights 192 144
 Foreign exchange adjustment loss (gain), net 1,404 (1,584)
 Research and development expenses 2,131 1,664
 (Reversal) Allowance for inventories (95) 217
 Inventories written off 48 59
 Impairment loss on long-term investment - 507
 Impairment of goodwill * 546 -
 Loss on disposal of plant and equipment 178 84
 Plant and equipment written off* - 47
 Impairment loss on plant and equipment* 155 -
 Allowances for doubtful debts:
    Trade receivables 691 312
    Non-trade debts 170 108
 Trade receivables recovered    -        (2)

* Included in the other operating expenses line item in the profit and loss statement.

29	 INCOME	TAX
	 Group
	 	 2005	 2004
	 	 $’000	 $’000

 Current tax 5,187 4,586
 Deferred tax  65 441
 Overprovision in prior years (1,022) (1,059)

  4,230 3,968

 Domestic income tax is calculated at 20% (2004 : 20%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year.  Taxation 
for other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

 The total charge for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

	 Group
	 	 2005	 2004
	 	 $’000	 $’000

 Profit before tax 25,857 40,560
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29	 INCOME	TAX	(Cont’d)
	 Group
	 2005	 2004
	 $‘000	 %	 $’000	 %

 Tax at the domestic income tax
    rate of 20% (2004 : 20%) 5,171 20 8,112 20
 Tax effect of expenses that are
    not deductible in determining
       taxable profit 1,733 6.7 (98) (0.2) 

Tax effect of income exempt from tax (2,145) (8.3) (8,649) (21.3)
 Tax effect of share of results of acssociates (427) (1.6) 2,171 5.3
 Effect of different tax rates of
    subsidiaries operating in other
       jurisdictions (1,423) (5.5) 3,287 8.1
 Tax effect of utilisation of deferred
    tax benefits not set up previously - - (50) (0.1)
 Tax effect of deferred tax benefit
    not recognised 2,387 9.2 200 0.5
 Overprovision in prior years (1,022) (4.0) (1,059) (2.6)
 Others    (44) (0.2)     54   0.1

 Tax expense and effective tax rate
    for the year 4,230 16.3 3,968   9.8

 Certain subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) have been granted full income tax exemption for 
2 years commencing from the first profit-making year, followed by a 50% exemption for the next 3 years.

 The Group has tax losses and temporary differences from capital allowances available for offsetting against 
future taxable income as follows:

	 Group
	 	 2005	 2004
	 	 $’000	 $’000
	 Tax	losses

 Amount at beginning of year 16,436 15,448
 Amount arising in current year  11,934      988

 Amount at end of year 28,370 16,436

	 Temporary	differences

 Amount at beginning of year - 223
 Amount utilised -   (223)

 Amount at end of year -    - 

 Deferred tax benefit on above unrecorded   7,294   3,569

 Deferred tax benefits vary from the Singapore statutory tax rate as it pertains to overseas subsidiaries.

 The realisation of the future income tax benefits from tax loss carryforwards and temporary differences is subject 
to the conditions imposed by the relevant tax authorities.
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30	 EARNINGS	PER	SHARE

 The basic earnings per share for the financial year ended December 31, 2005 is calculated by dividing the 
Group’s profit attributable to shareholders of $22,819,000 by 387,178,082 shares, being the  weighted average 
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year. 

 
 The basic earnings per share for the financial year ended December 31, 2004 is calculated by dividing the 

Group’s profit attributable to shareholders of $32,230,000 by 335,000,000 shares, being the number of ordinary 
shares in issue during the year.

 Fully diluted earnings per ordinary share is based on the Group’s profit attributable to shareholders of $22,819,000 
(2004 : $32,230,000) and 387,178,082 (2004 : 335,527,007) ordinary shares. The share options are anti-dilutive 
and therefore ignored in the calculation of fully diluted earnings per share.

31	 DIVIDENDS

a) Dividends paid during the financial year are as follows:
	 Group	and	Company
	 2005	 2004
	 $’000	 $’000
  Previous year’s proposed final dividend of $0.012 (2004 : $0.012)
     per share, tax exempt, on 335,000,000 (2004 : 335,000,000)
     ordinary shares 4,020 4,020
  Previous year’s underprovision of final dividend at $0.012
     per shares, tax exempt, on 65,000,000 ordinary shares 780 -
  Interim dividend of $0.010 (2004 : $0.008) per share,
     tax exempt, on 400,000,000 (2004 : 335,000,000)
     ordinary shares 4,000 2,680

   8,800 6,700

b) Proposed dividends as at the end of the financial year are as follows:

  Proposed final dividend of $0.006 (2004 : $0.012) per share
     tax exempt on 400,000,000 (2004 : 335,000,000)
     ordinary shares 2,400 4,020

32	 ACQUISITION	OF	ADDITIONAL	INTERESTS	IN	A	SUBSIDIARY	FROM	MINORITY	SHAREHOLDERS

 On July 15, 2005, the Group acquired the remaining 49% of the issued share capital of a subsidiary, Chaoji 
Holdings Pte Ltd, for cash consideration of $4,951,000.  This transaction has been accounted for by the purchase 
method of accounting.
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32	 ACQUISITION	OF	ADDITIONAL	INTERESTS	IN	A	SUBSIDIARY	FROM	MINORITY	SHAREHOLDERS	(Cont’d)

 The net assets acquired in the transaction, and the goodwill arising, are as follows:
	 Acquiree’s
	 carrying
	 Amount	before	 Fair	value
	 combination	 adjustments	 Fair	value
	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000
 Net assets acquired:

 Property, plant and equipment 8,437 - 8,437
 Inventories 99 - 99
 Trade receivables 1,906 - 1,906
 Other receivables 10,710 - 10,710
 Bank and cash balances 2,774 - 2,774
 Trade payables (2,687) - (2,687)
 Other payables (12,249) - (12,249)

      8,990

 Acquired 49%   4,405
 Goodwill        546

 Total consideration, satisfied by cash     4,951

 Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:
 Cash consideration paid   4,951
 Cash and cash equivalents acquired   - 

      4,951

 The goodwill arising on the acquisition of the additional 49% interest in Chaoji Holdings Pte Ltd and its subsidiaries, 
Chaoji (BVI) Ltd and Shanghai Yao Hsin Industry Co., Ltd, is attributable to the anticipated profitability of the 
distribution of the Group’s products in the new markets.

 Chaoji Holdings Pte Ltd is subsequently liquidated.  

33	 DISPOSAL	OF	SUBSIDIARY

 During the financial year, the Group disposed of its equity interest in a subsidiary Infospeed Pte Ltd.

 The net assets of Infospeed Pte Ltd and its subsidiaries at the date of disposal and at December 31, 2004 were 
as follows:

	 June	30,
	 		2005			 2004
	 $’000	 $’000

 Property, plant and equipment 2,308 2,434
 Inventories 1,376 636
 Trade receivables 1,696 3,371
 Other receivables 1,391 1,886
 Bank balances and cash 977 374
 Trade payables (7,510) (6,889)
 Other payables (2,047) (1,281)

  (1,809)    531
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33	 DISPOSAL	OF	SUBSIDIARY	(Cont’d)
	 June	30,
	 2005		
	 $’000

 Gain on disposal 3,865

 Total consideration 2,056

  
 Satisfied by:
    Cash 2,056

 Net cash inflow arising on disposal:
    Cash consideration received 2,056
    Cash and cash equivalents of subsidiaries disposed of   (977)

  1,079

34	 SEGMENT	INFORMATION

	 a)	 Business	segments

  The operations of the Group are in the manufacturing and sale of telephone and power cords, telephone 
jacks and accessories, telephone handsets, moulded plastic products and notebook casing, pressed metal 
and electronic products.  Most of the assets of the Group are deployed in these operations. Total assets by 
segments are those assets that are used in the operations of each segment.

  Segment revenue and expense:  Segment revenue and expense are the operating revenue and expense 
reported in the Group’s profit and loss statement that are directly attributable to a segment and the relevant 
portion of such revenue and expense that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to a segment.

  Segment assets and liabilities:  Segment assets include all operating assets used by a segment and consist 
principally of operating receivables, inventories and property, plant and equipment, net of allowances and 
provisions.  Capital additions include the total cost incurred to acquire property, plant and equipment, and 
intangible assets directly attributable to the segment.  Segment liabilities include all operating liabilities and 
consist principally of accounts payable, and accruals and loans.

  Investments in associates: Income from associates are not allocated as they are not specifically attributable 
to business segments, and correspondingly the investments in associates are not included as segment 
assets of the Group.

  Inter-segment transfers:  Segment revenue and expenses include transfers between business segments.  
Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market prices.  These transfers are eliminated on 
consolidation.
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34	 SEGMENT	INFORMATION	(Cont’d)
	 	 Mould,
	 	 moulded
	 	 plastic
	 	 products	and
	 Wire,	cable	 finished
	 and	related	 product
	 components	 				assembly					 Others	 Total
	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000
	 	 2005

	 	 REVENUE
	 	 External sales 45,340 614,073      857 660,270

	 	 RESULT
  Segment result 2,093 21,949 - 24,042
  Unallocated corporate expenses    (3,607)
  Interest income    857
  Other operating income    9,445
  Finance costs - (7,017) - (7,017)
  Share of results of associates        2,137

  PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX    25,857
  Income tax       (4,230)

  PROFIT	AFTER	INCOME	TAX      21,627

	 	 OTHER	INFORMATION
  Capital additions 318 48,540 13,001 61,859

  Depreciation and amortisation 1,085 15,597 728 17,410

  Significant non-cash expenses other
     than depreciation - 546 -     546

	 	 BALANCE	SHEET

  Assets
  Segment assets 34,724 544,887 - 579,611
  Investment in associate    5,214
  Other investment    30,174
  Unallocated corporate assets      41,405

  Consolidated total assets    656,404

  Liabilities
  Segment liabilities 4,183 321,948 - 326,131
  Unallocated corporate liabilities    4,405
  Income tax payable       2,235

  Consolidated total liabilities    332,771
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34	 SEGMENT	INFORMATION	(Cont’d)
	 	 Mould,
	 	 moulded
	 	 plastic
	 	 products	and
	 Wire,	cable	 finished
	 and	related	 product
	 components	 				assembly					 Others	 Total
	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000
	 2004

	 REVENUE
	 External sales 40,229 430,680   479 471,388

	 RESULT
 Segment result 3,577 43,990 - 47,567
 Unallocated corporate expenses    (1,593)
 Interest income    170
 Dividend income    309
 Other operating income    9,218
 Finance costs - (4,255) - (4,255)
 Share of results of associates     (10,856)

 PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX    40,560
 Income tax       (3,968)

 PROFIT	AFTER	INCOME	TAX      36,592

	 OTHER	INFORMATION
 Capital additions 293 39,959 5,979   46,231

 Depreciation and amortisation 1,438 14,885 641   16,964

 Significant non-cash expenses other
    than depreciation - 507 -       507

	 BALANCE	SHEET

 Assets
 Segment assets 30,363 422,915 - 453,278
 Investment in associate    24,290
 Unallocated corporate assets      29,680

 Consolidated total assets    507,248

 Liabilities
 Segment liabilities 4,030 249,658 - 253,688
 Unallocated corporate liabilities        2,523

 Consolidated total liabilities    256,211

 * From 2005, pressed metal products segment is incorporated under the mould, moulded plastic products 
and finished product assembly segment as its contribution to Group revenue is insignificant.  The segment 
information for 2004 has been reclassified accordingly.
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34	 SEGMENT	INFORMATION	(Cont’d)

	 b)	 Geographical	segments

 The Group operates in five geographical market segments - Malaysia, Republic of China, People’s Republic 
of China, Singapore and others.

 The following table provides an analysis of the carrying amount of segment assets and additions to property, 
plant and equipment, analysed by the geographical area in which the assets are located:

	 Group
	 	 Additions	to	property,
	 Carrying	amount	of	 	plant	and	equipment		
	 segment	assets	 and	land	use	rights	
	 2005	 2004	 2005	 2004
	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000

  Malaysia 18,247 15,520 119 25
  People’s Republic of China 565,038 424,698 61,629 45,465
  Republic of China 38,030 31,023 111 679
  Singapore 34,327 35,473 - 60
  Others       762       534    -          2

   656,404 507,248 61,859 46,231

 The majority of the Group’s products are supplied to Original Equipment Manufacturers (“OEM”) and Original 
Design Manufacturers (“ODM”).  Sales invoices are sent to centralised purchasing offices or purchasing agents 
of these OEMs and ODMs.  The manufacturers or principals will incorporate the Group’s products into their own 
equipment or distribute it as accessories through their distribution network.  The Company has no information of 
end markets of their products and is therefore unable to prepare geographical segment information on the basis 
of end markets of the products.  The Company is of the view that analysis of sales by geographical location based 
on the OEMs’ and ODMs’ location is not meaningful and has therefore not presented this information.

35	 UNSECURED	COMMITMENTS	AND	CAPITAL	EXPENDITURE

a) Capital expenditure contracted but not provided for in the financial statements of the subsidiaries amounted 
to $24,927,000 as at December 31, 2005 (2004 : $4,671,000).

b) Operating leases commitments:
	 Group
	 	 2005	 2004
	 	 $’000	 $’000

  Minimum lease payments under operating leases
     recognised as an expense in the year 3,079 1,924
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35	 UNSECURED	COMMITMENTS	AND	CAPITAL	EXPENDITURE	(Cont’d)

 At the balance sheet date, the Group has outstanding commitments under non-cancellable operating 
leases, which fall due as follows:

	 Group
	 	 2005	 2004
	 	 $’000	 $’000

  Within one year 3,164 1,967
  In the second to fifth year inclusive 10,726 2,143
  After five years   9,026 2,082

  Total 22,916 6,192

  Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for its factory and office premises.  Leases 
are negotiated for an average term of five years and rentals are fixed for an average of three years.

c) Guarantee amounting to $2,701,000 (2004 : $793,000) given by the Company in respect of sums due to two 
creditors of subsidiaries and one creditor of associate.

36	 CONTINGENT	LIABILITIES	–	UNSECURED

 During the financial year ended December 31, 2005, a subsidiary has claims for losses and damages by certain 
third parties under a suit where it was alleged that the cause of the fire at the third parties’ residence was a failure 
of and/or arcing of the subsidiary’s power cord product incorporated into an audio/video surround sound receiver 
located in the living room of the residence.  The ultimate outcome of the matter cannot presently be determined 
and no provision for any liability that may result has been made in the financial statements.

37	 EVENTS	AFTER	THE	BALANCE	SHEET	DATE

(a) As part of a restructuring exercise, the Company subscribed for 2,550,000 ordinary shares of US$1 each at 
par in Tech Chain Ltd (“TC”), representing 12.88% of the issued ordinary shares of TC.

 TC is the 49% shareholder of Zhan Yun (Shanghai) Electronics Co., Ltd (“ZY”), a subsidiary of the Group.

  Under the first stage of the restructuring, TC will invest an additional US$10 million in ZY thereby increasing 
the registered capital of ZY from US$20 million to US$30 million.  This will result in the dilution of the Group’s 
direct interest in ZY from 51% to 34% and an indirect interest of 8.5% in ZY through TC.

  During the second stage of the restructuring, the Group’s 34% direct interest in ZY will be transferred to TC 
in exchange for shares in TC.  ZY will then become a wholly owned subsidiary of TC.

  After the restructuring, the Company and Huan Hsin (China) Investments Co., Ltd (“HHC”) would own a 
total of 42.5% interest in TC.  The whole restructuring exercise is expected to complete by the first half of 
financial year 2006.  The reason for the restructuring is to prepare for the possible listing of ZY’s businesses 
in future.

(b) The Company entered into a Sale and Purchase Agreement to dispose of its entire 40% shareholding in 
Sheng Ding Pte Ltd for consideration of US$800,000.
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38	 RECLASSIFICATIONS	AND	COMPARATIVE	FIGURES

 Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year’s financial statements to enhance comparability with 
the current year’s financial statements.  As a result, certain line items have been amended on the face of the 
balance sheet, profit and loss statement, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statements, and the 
related notes to the financial statements.  Comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with the current 
year’s presentation.  

 The items were reclassified as follows:
	 	 Group
	 	 Previously	 After
	 	 		reported			 reclassification
	 	 2004		 2004	
	 	 $’000	 $’000

 Property, plant and equipment 150,942 144,208
 Land use rights      -    6,734

  150,942 150,942

 Proposed dividend 4,020 -
 Accumulated profits 130,391 134,411

  134,411 134,411
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In the opinion of the directors, the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the balance sheet and statement 
of changes in equity of the Company as set out on pages 23 to 69 are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of 
the state of affairs of the Group and of the Company as at December 31, 2005, and of the results, changes in equity 
and cash flows of the Group and changes in equity of the Company for the financial year then ended and at the date 
of this statement there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when 
they fall due.

ON BEHALF OF THE DIRECTORS

__________________________
Hsu Hung Chun

__________________________
Hsu Cheng Chien

March 3, 2006

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS
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The Board of Huan Hsin Holdings Ltd is committed to ensuring that the highest standards of corporate governance are 
practiced throughout the Group as a fundamental part of discharging its responsibilities to protect and enhance the 
long-term shareholder value and the financial performance of Huan Hsin Group.

The Board is pleased to report to shareholders on the manner in which it has applied the principle of good governance 
and the extent to which it has complied with the best practices set out in the Singapore Code of Corporate Governance 
(“the Code”).  These principles and best practices have been applied throughout the year 2005 and are regularly 
reviewed to ensure transparency and accountability.

BOARD	OF	DIRECTORS	

Board Composition and Balance 

The current Board has seven members comprising three independent non-executive and four executive directors. More 
than one-third of our directors are non-executives and independent of the management. 

The three independent non-executive directors are Mr. Lim Hock Beng, Mr. Lau Ping Sum, Pearce and Mr. Chew Heng 
Ching. The concept of independence adopted by the Board is in accordance with the definition of an independent 
director in the Code. The key elements of fulfilling the criteria are the appointment of an independent director who is not 
a member of the management and is free of relationship with the Company, its related companies or officers that could 
interfere with his independent judgement or ability to act in the interest of the Company. Every director is expected to act 
in good faith and always in the best interest of the Company. Collectively, the directors have a broad range of experience 
and knowledge in business, accounting, finance, technology and management experience. The role of the independent 
directors are particularly important as they provide unbiased and independent view, advice and judgement taking into 
account the interests, not only of the Group, but also shareholders, employees and customers. 

After reviewing the independence of each non-executive director for financial year 2005, the Nominating Committee is 
of the view that the non-executive directors of the Company are independent directors and further, no individual or a 
small group of individual dominates the Board’s discussion process.  

Although the Company’s Articles allow the appointment of a maximum of 12 directors, the Nominating Committee is of 
the view that the current board size of seven directors is adequate, taking into consideration the nature and scope of 
the Group’ operations. 

Our Articles of Association require, with the exception of the Managing Director, one-third of our directors to retire and 
subject to re-election by shareholders at every annual general meeting (“AGM”). The directors must submit themselves 
for re-nomination and re-election at regular interval of at least once every three years.  In addition, a newly appointed 
director will submit himself for retirement and re-election at the AGM immediately following his appointment. Thereafter, 
he is subject to retirement by rotation once every three years.  

The directors standing for re-election at the forthcoming AGM under Article 91 are Mr. Hsu Hung Chun and Mr. Lau 
Ping Sum, Pearce. The Nominating Committee recommends their re-election, after assessing their contribution and 
performance (including attendance, preparedness, participation and candour), including in the case of Mr. Lau Ping 
Sum, Pearce, as independent director.  

A brief profile of each director is set out on pages 6 and 7 in the Annual Report.   
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Board’s	Conduct	of	its	Affairs

The Board has the overall responsibility for corporate governance, strategic direction and overseeing the investments of 
the Company.  Apart from its fiduciary duties and statutory responsibilities, the principal functions of the Board are to:
 
• guide the corporate strategy and direction of the Group, including decisions on strategic directions and guidelines 

and the approval of major funding, investments and divestments;
• oversee the business and affairs of the Group, establish with managements, the strategies and financial objectives 

to be implemented by management, and monitor the performance of management;
• oversee processes for evaluating the adequacy of internal controls, risk management, financial reporting and 

compliance;
• approve the nomination of board director.

The Board meets at least four times a year, with additional meeting convened where necessary to deliberate on specific 
issues including significant transactions, investments and disposals, the annual budget, review of performance of the 
Group and approval of the quarterly, half year and year-end results. During the year, five Board meetings were held, 
of which one meeting was held in China, where the major part of the Group’s operations is located. This was to enable 
the directors to update themselves on the operations in China and to meet up with the senior management as well as 
the external Auditors of all the subsidiaries located in China. The members of the Board and their attendance at the 
meetings, were as follows:  

															Name	of	Directors	 No.	of	meetings	attended

               Hsu Hung Chun 4 out of  5
               Hsu Cheng Chien                                             4 out of  5
               Lim Hock Beng                                                        5 out of  5
               Lau Ping Sum, Pearce                                              5 out of  5
               Chew Heng Ching                                                    5 out of  5
               Hsu Ming Hung                                                        5 out of  5
               Chang Shih Hsing                                                   4 out of  5

All Directors are provided with the agenda and a set of Board papers five days prior to Board meeting.  These are issued 
in sufficient time to enable the Directors to better understand the matters to be discussed and to have sufficient time to 
obtain further explanations where necessary to ensure that they are adequately informed for the Board meeting. The 
Company fully recognises that the continual flow of relevant information on an accurate and timely basis is critical for 
the Board to be effective in discharging its duties.  

The Articles of Association of the Company provide for directors to convene meeting by teleconferencing. Where a physical 
Board meeting is not possible, timely communication with members of the Board is effected through electronic means, 
which include electronic mail and teleconferencing.  Newly appointed director is given briefings by the management on 
the business activities of the Group and the strategic directions as well as visits to overseas factories.  

The Board is mindful of the best practice in the Code to initiate programme for directors to meet their relevant 
training needs. In this regard, the Company has allocated for on-going training budget for existing directors to fund 
their participation at industry conferences and seminars and to fund directors’ attendance at any course of training 
programme in connection with their duties as director.

The Board is supported by three Board committees with specific terms of reference. These committees are the 
Audit Committee, Nominating Committee and Remuneration Committee. All Board committees have written terms of 
reference.
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Chairman	and	Chief	Executive	Officer

Mr. Hsu Hung Chun, the President and founder of the Group, also assumes the role of Chairman of the Board.  The 
Board is mindful of the dual roles held but is of the view that there are sufficient experienced and independent-minded 
directors on the Board to provide the assurance that there is sufficient check and balance.  Further, the dual roles have 
to a certain extent been balanced by the presence of the most senior executive, Mr. Hsu Cheng Chien, the Managing 
Director.   

The Chairman ensures that board meetings are held when necessary and sets the meeting agenda in consultation with 
the Managing Director. He reviews the Board papers before they are presented to the Board and ensures that Board 
members are provided with adequate and timely information.   He also assists to ensure that the Company complies 
with the Code.

Assess	to	Information

To enable the Board to fulfill its responsibilities, management provides the board members with monthly management 
accounts and other financial statements within 21 days after the end of each month. In addition, the Managing Director 
provided quarterly reports on the Group’s activities and performances. Board members have separate and independent 
access to senior management and the company secretary at all time. Board member may also obtain independent 
professional advice in furtherance of their duties, at  the Company’s expense.   

The company secretary attended all Board meetings and Board committee meetings except those meetings held 
overseas.  The company secretary is responsible to ensure that board procedures are followed and is also responsible 
for ensuring that the Company complies with the requirements of the Companies Act and other rules and regulations, 
which are applicable to the Company.

BOARD	COMMITTEES

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three members, all of whom are independent non-executive directors. The members 
of the Audit Committee are Mr. Lim Hock Beng, the Chairman, Mr. Lau Ping Sum, Pearce and Mr. Chew Heng Ching. 
The Audit Committee met at least five occasions during the year. The external and internal auditors and directors were 
invited to attend some of the meetings. At least once a year the Audit Committee met with the external auditors in 
Singapore and Shanghai and the internal auditors without the presence of the management.  All minutes of the meetings 
are circulated to all members of the Board. The company secretary is also the secretary to the Audit Committee. The 
attendance at Audit Committee meetings were as follows :

               Name of member No. of meetings attended

               Lim Hock Beng 5 out of  5                                                    
               Lau Ping Sum, Pearce 5 out of  5                                            
               Chew Heng Ching 5 out of  5

The key responsibility of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board in its review and control of all financial aspects of 
the Group. The Audit Committee reviews issues of accounting policy and presentation for external financial reporting 
and the effectiveness of the internal financial control.
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The Audit Committee performs the following functions:

• review with the external auditors, their audit plan, evaluate the internal accounting controls, audit report and 
management’s response thereto and any matters which the external auditors wish to discuss, without the 
presence of the executive directors;

• review with the internal auditors, the scope and the results of internal audit procedures and their evaluation of the 
internal control system together with management’s responses thereto;

• review the quarterly and half year results and full year financial statements and other announcements to 
shareholders and the SGX-ST prior to submission to the Board;

• make recommendations to the Board on the appointment of the external auditors and the audit fee;
• review any related party transactions;
• review assistance given by the Group’s officers to the external and internal auditors and ensure that the internal 

audit function is adequately resourced;
• carry out such other functions as may be agreed by the Audit Committee and the Board.

To effectively discharge it responsibilities, the Audit Committee has full access to and the co-operation of the management 
and full discretion to invite any director and executive to attend its meetings. It is also able to obtain external professional 
advice, if necessary. Full resources have been made available to the Audit Committee to enable it to discharge its 
function properly.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the non-audit services provided by the external auditors, which comprise tax 
services and is satisfied with the independence of the external auditors.  It is satisfied with the independence and 
objectivity of the external auditors and recommends to the Board the nomination of Deloitte & Touche for reappointment 
as auditors of the Company.  

Internal	Controls	

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound system of internal controls, covering not only financial controls but 
also operational and compliance controls including risk management to safeguard shareholders’ investments and the 
Group’s assets.  The Board is continuously reviewing the adequacy of the Group’s system of internal control and 
management information systems, including systems for compliance with applicable laws, regulations, rules directive 
and guidelines.  The Board and the Audit Committee are informed of all control issues pertaining internal control and 
regulatory compliances.   

Based on the internal audit reports and the management controls in place, the Board and the Audit Committee are 
satisfied that there are adequate internal controls in the Group.

Internal	Audit

The Group outsourced its internal audit function to an international accounting firm that is not the external auditors. 
The Senior Manager of the Internal Audit reports to the Audit Committee and assists in monitoring and updating risks 
and adequacy of the internal controls systems.  The Internal Auditors assist management to identify, evaluate and 
update significant risks and develop risks based audit plan for review and approval by the Audit Committee. The Audit 
Committee regularly reviewed the performance of the Internal Auditors and its reports.
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NOMINATING	COMMITTEE	

The Nominating Committee is made up of four members, three of whom are independent non-executives; namely, Mr. 
Chew Heng Ching as Chairman, Mr. Lau Ping Sum, Pearce and Mr. Lim Hock Beng and an executive director, Mr. Hsu 
Hung Chun. The Nominating Committee held one meeting during the year and the attendance was as follows: 

               Name of member                                            No. of meetings attended

               Chew Heng Ching                                            1 out of  1
               Hsu Hung Chun   1 out of  1               
               Lim Hock Beng 1 out of  1                                                     
               Lau Ping Sum, Pearce                                             1 out of  1                                                 
               
The Nominating Committees is entrusted with the specific task of recommending to the Board of all board appointments.  
This function extends to the recommendation on re-nomination having regard to the director’s contribution and 
performance.  It is charged with determining on an annual basis whether or not a director is independent and where 
a director has multiple board representations, whether the director is able to and has been adequately carrying out 
his duties as a director of the Company.  It is also mandated to undertake regular reviews of the performance of the 
Board. 

REMUNERATION	MATTERS

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is made up of three independent non-executive directors; namely, Mr. Lau Ping Sum, 
Pearce as Chairman, Mr. Lim Hock Beng, Mr. Chew Heng Ching and an executive director, Mr. Hsu Cheng Chien. The 
Remuneration Committee also administer the Huan Hsin Share Option Scheme.  The Remuneration Committee has 
access to expert advice in the field of executive compensation outside the Company, when required. 

The principal role of the Remuneration Committee includes the following:

• recommend to the Board a framework of remuneration for the Board members including directors’ fees and 
allowances; 

• determine specific remuneration packages including the terms of appointment for each executive director; 
• implementing and administering the Huan Hsin Share Option Scheme (“the Scheme”) in accordance with the 

Rules of the Scheme;
• to do all other things that may form part of the responsibilities of the remuneration committee under the provision 

of the Code.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the year and their attendance at the meetings were as 
follows:

                 Name of member                                          No. of meetings attended

                 Lau Ping Sum, Pearce                                 2 out of  2
                 Hsu Cheng Chien                                       2 out of  2
                 Lim Hock Beng                                           2 out of  2
                 Chew Heng Ching                                            2 out of  2
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Disclosure	of	Remuneration	

The band and mix of Director’s remuneration and key five Executives for the year ended  December 31, 2005 are set 
out below:

Directors’ Remuneration

Remuneration Band & 
Name of Director

Salary includes 
annual bonus 

Performance 
related income / 

bonus 
Director’s 

Fees
Total 

Remuneration

Share Options 
granted (number 

of shares)

S$1,000,000 to 
S$2,000,000
Hsu Hung Chun 23% 75% 2% 100% -
Hsu Cheng Chien 23% 75% 2% 100% -

Below S$250,000
Lim Hock Beng - - 100% 100% -
Lau Ping Sum, Pearce - - 100% 100% -
Chew Heng Ching - - 100% 100% -
Hsu Ming Hung 80% - 20% 100% -
Chang Shih Hsing 80% - 20% 100% -

 
Remuneration of Top Five Key Executives

Remuneration  Band No. of Executive
Below S$250,000 5

During the financial year ended December 31, 2005, no employee of the Company or its related companies who are 
immediate family members of a director received remuneration exceeding S$150,000.

SECURITIES	TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted its own internal Code of Best Practices on Securities Transactions (“Securities Transaction 
Code”), which is in line with SGX-ST Best Practices Guide with some modification. The Securities Transaction Code 
provides guidance to the directors and key employees of the Group with regard to dealing in the Company’s shares.  It 
emphasises that the law on insider trading is applicable at all times notwithstanding the window periods for dealing in 
the shares. The Securities Transaction Code also enables the Company to monitor such share transactions by requiring 
employees to report to the Company whenever they deal in the Company’s shares. The Company issues circulars to its 
directors, executives and employees that they must not trade in the listed securities of the Company two weeks before 
the release of the first quarter and third quarter results and one month before the release of the half year and year-end 
financial results.
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COMMUNICATION	WITH	SHAREHOLDERS	

The Board believes in regular, timely and effective communications with shareholders. In addition to the mandatory 
public announcements made through the SGXNET, timely release of the financial results provides shareholders with an 
overview of the Group’s performances and operations.  Quarterly results announcements were mailed to all shareholders 
as soon they were released to SGX. The principal forum for dialogue with shareholders remains the Annual General 
Meeting, during which shareholders are encouraged to raise questions and participate in discussions pertaining to the 
operations and financials of the Group. The Company has a corporate communication and investor relation executive, 
who communicates with its investors on a regular basis and attends to their queries. 
                    
The Company organises briefings for Press, analysts and fund managers in conjunction with the release of its half-year 
and year-end financial results. The Company also participated in various investors’ forums to keep them abreast of the 
Group’s developments.  

Any queries and concerns regarding the Group can be conveyed to the following person:

Mr. Lee Say Kean, Investor Relations Manager
Telephone No. : 62257910
Handphone No.: 96364323 
Fax No.: 64386221
E-mail: sklee@huanhsin.com.my 

Shareholders can also obtain information on the Group’s activities on the Company’s website at www.huanhsin.com.
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Additional Information

1.		 Use	of	proceeds	from	placement	of	35,000,000	new	ordinary	shares	of	S$0.20	each	in	the	capital	of	the	
Company

In February 2003, the Company successfully placed 35,000,000 new shares at the price of S$0.91 each to fund 
its expansion plans, thereby raising the issued share capital to 335,000,000 shares of S$0.20 each. The net 
proceeds raised, amounting to approximately S$31.2 million will mainly be used to expand the Group’s notebook 
casing production capacity and spray-painting facilities.  For the financial year ended December 31, 2005, out of 
the total net proceeds from the aforesaid placement, the following have been used: 

Item 2005
(S$’	million)

2004
(S$’	million)

2003
(S$’	million)

To purchase additional machinery for Shanghai 
plant to expand its notebook casing production 
capacity

- - 3.6

To fund the construction of two new plants in 
Shanghai

- 1.0 7.7

To expand the spray-painting facility in Shanghai. - - 5.3

To construct a new plant and to acquire new 
machinery for Zhan Yun (Shanghai) Electronics 
Co., Ltd

- 9.0 -

Total - 10.0 16.6

2.		 Use	of	proceeds	from	placement	of	65,000,000	new	ordinary	shares	of	S$0.20	each	in	the	capital	of	the	
Company

In February 2005, the Company successfully placed 65,000,000 new shares at the price of S$0.88 each, thereby 
raising the issued share capital to 400,000,000 shares of S$0.20 each. The net proceeds raised, amounting to 
approximately S$55.3 million of which approximately S$25.2 million will be used for the repayment of existing 
borrowings due in May, June, July 2005 and the balance for business expansions and investments as well as 
general working capital requirements.  For the financial year ended December 31, 2005, out of the total net 
proceeds from the aforesaid placement, the following have been used: 

Item 2005
(S$’	million)

Repayment of existing borrowings due in May, June, July 2005 25.2

For business expansions and group investment   8.3

Increase Group’s working capital.  12.8

Total  46.3
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Additional Information

3.		 Material	Contracts

No material contracts to which the Company or any related company is a party which involved the interest of the 
directors or controlling shareholders subsisted at, or have been entered into since the previous financial year.

4.		 Interested	Person	Transactions

Transactions with interested person, who is a director, chief executive officer and controlling shareholders, during 
the financial year as follow:

    

Interested	person Nature	of	transaction 2005 2004

$’000 $’000

Hsu Hung Chun/ Hsu Cheng Chien Rental expense 82 78

Hsu Cheng Chien Rental expense 3 3

Hsu Hung Chun/ Hsu Cheng Chien Licence fee 10 10

Hsu Hung Chun/ Hsu Cheng Chien Disposal of plant and equipment   (22)   -
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Amount of issued share capital : S$151,096,603 
Number of issued shares :  400,000,000
Class of shares               :  ordinary shares
Voting rights                   :  one vote per share

Size	of No.	of No.	of
Shareholdings Shareholders Percentage Shares	Held Percentage

1                  -999 138 3.48% 58,570 0.01%
1,000          -10,000 2,420 60.94% 13,304,656 3.33%
10,001        -1,000,000 1,378 34.70% 66,790,750 16.70%

1,000,001 and above 35 0.88% 319,846,024 79.96%
3,971 100% 400,000,000 100%

Based on information available to the Company as at March 3, 2006, approximately  47% of the issued ordinary shares 
of the Company is held by the public and, therefore, Rule 723 of the Listing Manual issued by the Singapore Exchange 
Securities Trading Limited is complied with.

Statistics of Shareholdings
As at March 3, 2006

Top	Twenty	Shareholders	
as at March 3, 2006

No.	of
S/No. Name Shares Percentage

1 CCH HOLDINGS LIMITED 54,534,175 13.63%
2 HUNGCHUN HOLDINGS LIMITED 54,534,175 13.63%
3 DBS NOMINEES PTE LTD 45,944,125 11.49%
4 RAFFLES NOMINEES PTE LTD 28,807,075 7.20%
5 UOB KAY HIAN PTE LTD 19,667,088 4.92%
6 HUNGCHUN ASSETS LIMITED 18,178,059 4.54%
7 CCH ASSETS LIMITED 18,178,058 4.54%
8 HSBC (SINGAPORE) NOMINEES PTE LTD 12,667,000 3.17%
9 LIAO HAN KUEI 6,917,388 1.73%
10 CITIBANK NOMINEES S’PORE PTE LTD 6,304,400 1.58%
11 OCBC SECURITIES PRIVATE LTD 5,622,000 1.41%
12 MORGAN STANLEY ASIA (S’PORE) 4,478,000 1.12%
13 CIMB-GK SECURITIES PTE. LTD. 4,341,115 1.09%

14 YEH WANG FU-TAI 3,750,000 0.94%
15 HSU CHANG YU-MEI 3,000,000 0.75%
16 YANG YU-LIN 3,000,000 0.75%
17 UNITED OVERSEAS BANK NOMINEES PTE LTD 2,170,000 0.54%
18 DBS VICKERS SECS (S) PTE LTD 2,153,000 0.54%
19 CHANG SHIH HSING 2,090,066 0.52%
20 THE ASIA LIFE ASSURANCE SOCIETY LTD-PAR FUND 2,000,000 0.50%

298,335,724 74.59%
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Substantial	Shareholders

As shown in the Register of Substantial Shareholders

No	of	Shares
S/No. Name	of	Shareholders Direct	Interest Deemed	Interest

1 HungChun Holdings Limited# 54,534,175 -
2 CCH Holdings Limited## 54,534,175 -
3 Hsu Hung Chun* - 75,712,234
4 Hsu Cheng Chien** 500,000 75,712,233
5 Hsu Chang Yu Mei* 3,000,000 72,712,234
6 Yang Yu Lin** 3,000,000 73,212,233
7 Templeton Worldwide, Inc *** - 32,043,000
8 Franklin Resources, Inc *** - 32,043,000
9 Peter Cundill & Associates (Bermuda) Ltd 

- Mackenzie Cundill Recovery Fund - 26,000,000

# Mr Hsu Hung Chun is, by virtue of his interest in HungChun Holdings Limited and HungChun Assets Limited 
which holds 18,178,059 shares in the Company, deemed to be a substantial shareholder of the Company. 
HungChun Holdings Limited and HungChun Assets Limited are companies incorporated in British Virgin 
Islands and wholly-owned by Mr Hsu Hung Chun.

## Mr Hsu Cheng Chien is, by virtue of his interest in CCH Holdings Limited and CCH Assets Limited which holds 
18,178,058 shares in the Company, deemed to be a substantial shareholder of the Company. CCH Holdings 
Limited and CCH Assets Limited are companies incorporated in British Virgin Islands and wholly-owned by Mr 
Hsu Cheng Chien.

* Husband and wife

** Husband and wife

*** Templeton Worldwide, Inc is deemed to have an interest in 32,043,000 shares which are held by its indirect 
wholly owned subsidiaries, Franklin Templeton Investments (Asia) Limited, Franklin Templeton Investments 
Corp., Franklin Templeton Investment Management Limited and Templeton Investment Counsel, LLC.

*** Franklin Resources, Inc is the holding company of Templeton Worldwide, Inc and it is deemed to have an 
interest in 32,043,000 shares held indirectly by Templeton Worldwide, Inc.

Statistics of Shareholdings
As at March 3, 2006
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NOTICE	IS	HEREBY	GIVEN that the Tenth Annual General Meeting of Huan Hsin Holdings Ltd will be held at Raffles 
Hotel, Casuarina Suite A, Level 3 (via Seah Street entrance) 1 Beach Road, Singapore 189673 on Tuesday, April 18, 
2006 at 10.00 a.m., for the following purposes: -

1. To receive and adopt the Directors’ Report and Audited Accounts of the Company for the financial 
year ended December 31, 2005.

(Resolution	1)

2. To declare a final tax exempt dividend of 0.6 Singapore cents per ordinary share for the year 
ended December 31, 2005.  

(Resolution	2)

3. To approve Directors’ Fees of S$315,000/- for the year ended December 31, 2005. (2004: 
S$295,000/-)

(Resolution	3)

4. To re-elect the following Directors retiring in accordance with Article 91 of the Company’s Articles 
of Association: - 
a) Hsu Hung Chun   (Resolution	4a)
b) Lau Ping Sum, Pearce  (Resolution	4b)

5. To re-appoint Deloitte & Touche as auditors of the Company and to authorise the Directors to fix 
their remuneration.

(Resolution	5)

6. To transact any other ordinary business of an Annual General Meeting of which due notice shall 
have been given.

(Resolution	6)

AS	SPECIAL	BUSINESS
 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following ordinary resolutions with or without any modifications: -

7. “That pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, Cap. 50 and the Listing Manual of the 
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited, the Directors of the Company be and they are 
hereby authorised to issue shares in the Company (whether by way of rights, bonus or otherwise) 
at any time and upon such terms and conditions and for such purposes and to such person as the 
Directors may in their absolute discretion, deem fit provided that the aggregate number of shares 
to be issued pursuant to this Resolution does not exceed 50 per centum of the number of issued 
shares in the capital of the Company at the time of the passing of this Resolution, of which the 
aggregate number of shares to be issued other than on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders 
shall not exceed 20 per centum of the number of issued shares in the capital of the Company at 
the time of the passing of this Resolution and that such authority shall continue in force until the 
date that the next annual general meeting of the Company is held or is required by law to be held, 
whichever is the earlier, unless revoked or varied at a general meeting of the Company”.
(see explanatory note (i))

(Resolution	7)

Notice of Annual General Meeting
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8. “That the Directors of the Company be and they are hereby authorised to offer and grant options in 
accordance with the Huan Hsin Share Option Scheme (“the Scheme”) and to issue such shares as 
may be required to be issued pursuant to the exercise of the options under the Scheme provided 
always that the aggregate number of shares to be issued pursuant to the Scheme shall not exceed 
10 per centum of the number of issued shares in the capital of the Company from time to time”.

(Resolution	8)

By Order of the Board

Tan	Cheng	Siew	@	Nur	Farah	Tan
Company Secretary

Singapore, March 31, 2006

NOTE	:

1. A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy 
to attend and vote instead of him/her. A proxy need not be a member of the Company. The instrument appointing 
a proxy must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, 6 Shenton Way #28-09 DBS Building Tower 
Two, Singapore 068809, not less than 48 hours before the time set for holding the Meeting.

2. Mr Lau Ping Sum, Pearce, will upon re-election as Director of the Company, continue to serve as a member of the 
Audit Committee, Nominating Committee and Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and will be considered 
independent for the purposes of Clause 704(8) of the Listing Manual of the Singapore Exchange Securities 
Trading Limited.

 

STATEMENT	PURSUANT	TO	ARTICLE	54	OF	THE	COMPANY’S	ARTICLES	OF	ASSOCIATION

i) The proposed Resolution 7, if passed, will empower the Directors of the Company from the date of the above Meeting 
until the next Annual General Meeting to issue shares in the Company up to an amount not exceeding in total 50 per 
centum of the number of issued shares in the capital of the Company for such purposes as they consider would be 
in the interests of the Company. This authority will, unless previously revoked or varied at a general meeting, expire 
at the next Annual General Meeting of the Company.

 The percentage of the issued share capital is based on the number of issued shares in the capital of the Company 
at the time of the passing of this Resolution after adjusting for (a) new shares arising from the conversion or exercise 
of convertible securities (b) new shares arising from exercising share options or vesting of share awards outstanding 
or subsisting at the time of the passing of this Resolution and (c) any subsequent consolidation or subdivision of 
shares.

 
ii) The proposed Resolution 8, if passed, will empower the Directors of the Company, from the date of the above 

meeting until the Next Annual General Meeting, to issue shares of up to an amount in aggregate not exceeding 10 
per centum of the number of issued shares in the capital of the Company from time to time pursuant to the exercise 
of the options under the Scheme.

Notice of Annual General Meeting
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I/We ___________________________________________________________________________________________

of _____________________________________________________________________________________________

being a *Member/Members of the abovenamed Company hereby appoint:

Name Address NRIC	/
Passport	Number

Proportion	of	
Shareholdings	(%)

and/or (delete as appropriate)

as *my/our proxy/proxies to vote for *me/us on *my/our behalf, at the Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held 
at  Raffles Hotel, Casuarina Suite A, Level 3 (via Seah Street entrance) 1 Beach Road, Singapore 189673 on Tuesday, 
April 18, 2006 at 10.00 a.m. and at any adjournment thereof. *I/We direct *my/our *proxy/proxies to vote for or against the 
Resolutions to be proposed at the Meeting as indicated hereunder. If no specific direction as to voting is given, the *proxy/
proxies will vote or abstain from voting at his/their discretion, as he/they will on any other matters arising at the Meeting.

No. Resolutions	relating	to: For Against

1. Adoption of the Directors’ Report and Audited Accounts of the Company for the 
financial year ended December 31, 2005.

2. Final Tax-Exempt Dividend of 0.6 Singapore cents per ordinary share for the year 
ended December 31, 2005.

3. Approval of  Directors’ Fees of S$315,000/- for the year ended December 31, 2005. 
(2004 : S$295,000/-)

4. (a) Re-election of Mr. Hsu Hung Chun as a Director
(b) Re-election of  Mr. Lau Ping Sum, Pearce as a Director

5. Re-appointment of  Deloitte & Touche as auditors of the Company and to authorise 
the Directors to fix their remuneration

6. Other ordinary business
7. Authority for the Directors to issue shares in the Company
8. Authority for the Directors to grant options and to issue shares under the Huan Hsin 

Share Option Scheme

Dated this ______________ day of _____________________ 2006

Total	Number	of	
Shares	Held

_____________________________________________
Signature(s) of Member(s) or Common Seal

* Delete Accordingly

PROXY FORM
HUAN	HSIN	HOLDINGS	LTD
(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

#
Important:

1. For Investors who have used their CPF moneys to 
buy shares of HUAN HSIN HOLDINGS LTD., the 
Annual Report 2005 is forwarded to them at the 
request of their CPF Approved Nominees and is 
sent solely FOR INFORMATION ONLY.

2. This Proxy Form is not valid for use by CPF 
Investors and shall be ineffective for all intents and 
purposes if used or purported to be used by them



Important

1. A Member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint one or two proxies to 
attend and vote in his/her stead. A proxy need not be a Member of the Company and where there is more than 
one proxy, the proportion of Shares to be represented by each proxy must be stated.

2. Where a Member appoints two proxies, the appointments shall be invalid unless he specifies the proportion 
(expressed as a percentage of the whole) of his shareholdings to be represented by each proxy.

3. This instrument of proxy must be signed by the appointor or his/her duly authorised attorney or, if the appointor is 
a body corporate, signed by a duly authorised officer or its attorney or affixed with its common seal thereto.

4. Where an instrument appointing a proxy is signed on behalf of the appointor by an attorney, the letter or power of 
attorney or a duly certified copy thereof must (failing previous registration with the Company) be lodged with the 
instrument of proxy, failing which the instrument may be treated as invalid.

5. The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies (together with the power of attorney [if any] under which it is signed 
or a certified copy thereof), must be deposited at the registered office of the Company at 6 Shenton Way #28-09 
DBS Building Tower Two Singapore 068809 not less than 48 hours before the time fixed for holding the Annual 
General Meeting.

6. Please insert the total number of Shares held by you. If you have Shares entered against your name on the 
Depository Register (as defined in Section 130A of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 of Singapore), you should 
insert that number of Shares. If you have Shares registered in your name in the Register of Members of the 
Company, you should insert that number of Shares. If you have Shares entered against your name in the 
Depository Register and registered in your name in the Register of Members, you should insert the aggregate 
number of Shares. If no number is inserted, this instrument of proxy will be deemed to relate to all the Shares held 
by you.

7. The Company shall be entitled to reject this instrument of proxy if it is incomplete, or illegible or where the true 
intentions of the appointor are not ascertainable from the instructions of the appointor specified in this instrument 
of proxy. In addition, in the case of Members whose Shares are deposited with The Central Depository (Pte) 
Limited (“CDP”), the Company may reject any instrument of proxy lodged if such Member is not shown to have 
Shares entered against his name in the Depository Register as at 48 hours before the time appointed for holding 
the Annual General Meeting as certified by CDP to the Company.

 






